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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

4 755 41k 2

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB803.1 million, representing a decrease of 3.4% from RMB831.1
million recorded in 2016.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB429.5 million, representing a decrease of 3.6% from RMB445.7
million recorded in 2016.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB186.8 million,
representing a decrease of 9.6% from RMB206.6 million recorded in
2016.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBG6.5 cents per ordinary share for 2017.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (5 YEARS)

B (5 4)

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five #HE B T S EZHBHRER I ANEENBER
financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements, EBfIFE 2 ¥45 - EENBBEZMEEHMNOT ¢
is set out below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF T RF —T-—hF —TMmMF —T-—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTET

RESULTS E ¥

REVENUE N 803,141 831,149 798,861 668,426 530,433
Cost of sales SHER A (373,615) (385,453) (347,989) (281,928) (217,364)
GROSS PROFIT E 429,526 445,696 450,872 386,498 313,069
Other income and gains HAb A RIS 19,755 8,426 11,875 5877 11,519
Selling and distribution expenses 4§56 & £ 455 (110,985) (81,225) (75,073) (40,338) (25,679)
Administrative expenses THFAX (71,906) (83,065) (80,265) (81,444) (74,094)
Other expenses Hnpx (1,465) (1,271) (105) (1,512) (17
Finance costs BhE LA (48,840) (40,606) (32,609) (22,858) (17,646)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B RS AT FE 216,085 247,955 274,695 246,223 207,152
Income tax expense SR> (29,310) (41,319 (46,167) (34,620) (32,945)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ERFH 186,775 206,636 228,528 211,603 174,207
Attributable to: THIALELL -

Owners of the parent BERARERA 186,775 206,636 228,528 211,603 174,207

ZEMBEARAR —T—tFFR 03



FINANCIAL SUMMARY (5 YEARS)
(CONTINUED)

BB (5 4F) ()

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - -SEBRER

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
22—+t Z=-—RF —T-hF —T—mMF —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®BTT ARETEI AR®TT

TOTAL ASSETS BEMAE SACHETE 3,164,133 2,298,666 1,936,466 728,669
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (RN (1,262,124) (875,335) (682,062) (432,343)

TOTAL EQUITY B 2,033,839 1,902,009 1,423,331 1,254,404 296,326
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

It is a great honour for me, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Honworld Group Limited (the “Company” or “Lao
Heng He”), to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are one of the leading manufacturers of condiment products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). We offer high quality
and healthy brewed cooking wine as well as other condiments, including
naturally-brewed soy sauce, vinegar, soybean paste and fermented bean
curd. In 2017, we attained the following achievements:

(1) “Lao Heng He” was accredited as “China’s Centenarian Brand” (1 2
A F & & & k) and its brewing techniques were included in the
provincial intangible cultural heritage representative list;

(2)  The R&D center for bioengineering jointly operated with Jiangnan
University was formally established, and has obtained a number of
scientific and technological achievements such as the research on
the control of rancid microorganisms in rice wine tanks, the research
on flavor enhancement technology and the development of functional
rose fermented bean curd;

(8)  We were involved in the formulation of the quality and manufacturing
standards for brewing of cooking wine in the second batch of the
companies referred in “Made in Zhejiang Standard” (T 2L i&1Z ),
and

(4)  We were selected as the designated supplier of condiments for 2017
BRICS Summit held in Xiamen.

In 2017, we continued to transform and upgrade our sales channels and
implement diversified development strategies as the condiment industry as
a whole kept expanding as a result of the upgrade of the household and
catering consumption and over 70% of such market expansion and
increment are attributable to the distribution channels and catering
channels. We continued to commit most of our sales and marketing
resources to the establishment of the distribution channels, catering
channels and e-commerce channels (the “New Sales Channels”). Our
product distribution terminals have further penetrated into the markets of
the third and fourth-tier cities, counties, villages and towns, which helps us
to respond promptly to the market and speed up product distribution.

A
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

= e (4)

In 2017, our channel transformation began to take shape and sales from
the New Sales Channel significantly increased as compared to the
corresponding period in 2016, among which sales from the distribution
channels increased from RMB258.5 million in 2016 to RMB345.8 million in
2017, representing an increase of 33.8%. Sales from the catering channels
and the e-commerce channels increased from RMB8.4 million in 2016 to
RMB24.4 million in 2017, representing an increase of 190.5%.

With the development of New Sales Channels, the total number of our
clients increased from 898 as at 31 December 2016 to 1,220 as at 31
December 2017, representing an increase of 35.9%. Among which, clients
from the distribution channels increased from 856 as at 31 December 2016
to 1,089 as at 31 December 2017, representing an increase of 27.2%.
Other New Sales Channels recorded growth of various degrees. However,
sales from the supermarket channel decreased by 23.3% from RMB564.2
million in 2016 to RMB432.9 million in 2017 due to the overall sluggishness
of the supermarket industry and its less prominent advantage over other
sales channels, as well as less marketing resources being allocated to the
supermarket channels.

As a result of the above, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group’s revenue reached approximately RMB803.1 million (2016:
RMB831.1 million), representing a decrease of approximately 3.4% over
2016. Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent was
approximately RMB186.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB206.6 million), representing a decrease of approximately 9.6%
over 2016. As the New Sales Channels became mature, the growth of our
sales expenses slowed down. The downward trend of our profits was
mitigated, leading to the net profit for the second half of 2017 similar to that
for the same period in 2016.

In 2017, our key products, namely cooking wine, remained a major source
of revenue, representing 72.2% of the total revenue. In view of the client’s
growing demand from the New Sales Channels and the anticipated sales
growth of soy sauce, rice vinegar, fermented bean curd and other products
upon the further development of New Sales Channels, we consider that a
rich and diversified condiment portfolio would be more beneficial to the
business development of the Group in the coming years. Thus, we will
increase the production capacity of soy sauce, rice vinegar, fermented bean
curd and other products, so as to diversify the existing portfolio of
condiment products of the Group. We believe that cooking wine products
are complementary with other products in terms of resource advantages,
such that we will be able to develop an in-depth industry chain for the
Group’s condiment products at multiple levels, thereby turning Lao Heng
He into a diversified condiment manufacturer with cooking wine as a
dominant product.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

We have a huge base wine stock and continuously made technological
improvements to the production process to meet the demand for the future
“naturally-brewed” cooking wine production. Therefore, we believe that
even if new competitors enter the cooking wine industry, they can hardly
dent our leading position in the industry within a short period of time. On
the other hand, we will soon complete the construction of a new plant in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province and purchase a new production line of soy
sauce and fermented bean curd. This will equip us to cope with the
continuous growing market demand for green and healthy condiment
products of premium quality.

Our profitability mainly depends on the product price and our cost of sales,
our sales and marketing strategy and the product structure and mix. We
are actively monitoring any potential risk factors that may have impact on
our financial results, and trying to mitigate any increasing costs and
expenses with more efficient operation, higher profit margins and better
product mix and sales channels. However, the Group does face certain
risks in its business development, which include: 1) risk of significant
increase in production cost, such as increase in the prices of agricultural
sideline products, packaging cost or labour cost; 2) negative impact on our
sales due to the changing consumption behaviour of consumers for
condiment products; 3) the greater-than-expected increase in cost from
market expansion and selling expenses; 4) the possible failure of our new
products to obtain market recognition in the short run; and 5) increasing
complexity of managing sales policies and credit terms due to rapid
expansion of our distributors.

= e (78)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

= e (4)

FUTURE PROSPECTS

China’s economy has currently shifted from a high-speed growth phase to
a high-quality development phase and is now in the transition period of
optimising the economic structure. The pattern of the condiment industry
with low concentration and relatively large differences in development level
will be broken.

Specific changes include (1) industrialized and modernized production
methods incorporating traditional craftsmanship being more widely applied;
(2) consumers expediting its upgrade on consumption of condiment
products; (3) the technological content and the requirement over the quality
of condiment products further accelerating; and (4) the degree of
concentration of condiment production becoming more intensified.

Under such a general trend, our “Lao Heng He” products with outstanding
brand awareness, modernized traditional craftsmanship, mature quality
control mechanism and perfect product R&D system will gain more room
for development. Leveraging on our product quality and technology as our
core-competitiveness, we will stand out amid fierce market competition
through differentiation in product quality.

In addition to maintaining the leading position of our cooking wine products,
we will endeavor to adhere to our strategy of “Diversified” product structure
so as to meet the diversified market demand for green and healthy
condiment products of premium flavor. Furthermore, we also keep
expanding our production capacity with expectation to enjoy economy of
scale and therefore enhance our overall profitability. The new investment in
new plants and equipment is expected to boost our annual production
capacity of soy sauce by 50,000 tons, vinegar by 20,000 tons and
fermented bean curd by 10,000 tons.

As a result of the foregoing, we believe products of our “Lao Heng He”
brand will continue to expand in China.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GOALS AND STRATEGIES

In 2018, we will continue to pursue the “DIVERSIFIED (% JT1{t)” strategy,
concentrating our investment and resources on exploring sales channels
and product offerings. We will adhere to a consumer-oriented sales strategy
and endeavor to achieve higher customer loyalty. We focus on providing
consumers with safer and healthier naturally-brewed condiment products of
premium quality.

We are determined to consolidate our position in the condiments industry
by diversifying our sales channels and promoting the sales of combined
products, leveraging on our leading position in the cooking wine industry. In
order to better implement our strategy to diversify our channels and deepen
the penetration of our distribution network in third and fourth-tier cities, we
plan to continue to ensure appropriate allocation of resources in sales and
marketing and advertising spending, to raise our customers’ awareness to
the products of our “Lao Heng He” brand, and also to focus on introducing
the excellent quality and healthiness of our products to our consumers. On
the one hand, we will further increase the investment in the establishment of
the marketing team. On the other hand, we will make use of the traditional
television media, new media and self-media to enhance our brand value in
multiple dimensions by integrating the digital marketing and e-commerce
platform. In respect of the expansion of distributors, we will continue to
cooperate with capable distributors through our diversified channels, and
continue to actively improve the market share of our “Lao Heng He” brand
in the PRC market.

In addition, we also take proactive approach in building up our internet sale
platform. In 2017, we opened a new store on WeChat mall (% & 3) and
was recognized by NetEase as its designated condiment supplier. We will
commit more sales and marketing resources from now on to cooperate
with more premium internet sale platforms as a way to boost our sales from
e-commerce channels.

= e (78)
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

= e (4)

We will always pay close attention to and actively address any risks that
may come along with growth. In 2017, we formulated and optimized our
company’s standardized production system and upgraded the information
technology system to cope with the fast expansion of our sales team. Apart
from that, we will continue to provide more comprehensive and systematic
training to our expanding sales team to respond to the possible negative
impact on the sales of our Group’s products brought about by the
deficiency of our sales teams. We will keep improving our credit risk
management system to respond to the complexity of sales policies and
credit terms management as a result of the increasing number of
distributors. We will also continue to build an information sharing platform to
strengthen internal communications to respond to the negative impact on
our sales and our distributors, which is caused by the difference in pricing
policy in different geographical locations that leads to cross-sales of
products to other exclusively-authorized distribution areas.

“Lao Heng He” strives to become the preferred choice of consumers.

APPRECIATION

I'would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
Shareholders, Board members, management team and all our employees,
as well as our business partners and customers for their continuous support
and contribution to the Group.

Chen Weizhong
Chairman of the Board

29 March 2018
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEQO)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Ms. Qian Yinglan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Sun Jiong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Weizhong
Mr. Au Wai Keung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Wing Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Jiong

Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Ms. Qian Yinglan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Sun Jiong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

v E R (%)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Sun Jiong (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai
Mr. Shen Zhenchang

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Balidian Town

Food and Industrial Park
Wuxing District, Huzhou City
Zhejiang 313000, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 606-607, 6th Floor

China Merchants Building
152-155 Connaught Road Central
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Zhili Branch

No. 583, 587, 589 Zhenbei Road

Zhili Town

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

PRC

Bank of China Limited

Huzhou Branch

No. 208, Renmin Road
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huzhou Branch

No. 88, Renmin Road

Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
PRC

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG
LAW

Li & Partners
22nd Floor, World-wide House
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

v E R (%)

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

EREZBERE

EEPRESFBRLBERLDA

Shops 1712-1716 B
17/F, Hopewell Centre BT
183 Queen’s Road East EFRER183%

Wanchai

BRABLATE

Hong Kong 1712-171650E
STOCK CODE % 42455

Stock code: 2226
Board lot: 500 shares

WEBSITE

http://www.hzlachenghe.com
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HELRBEEANEEE

Below are brief profiles of the current directors (“Directors”, each a A T&EHIAEERFTES((EE) LaREEEN

“Director”) and senior management of the Group. fHAY o

Date of appointment
Name Age Position as Director
®E Fie B BZEAREEAH
Executive Directors
HITEE
Chen Weizhong 46 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and 13 May 2013

chief executive officer
PR & EEQER OTESFKERITE —E-=FhA+=H
Sheng Mingjian 43 Executive Director and vice general manager 17 December 2013
PR 2 WITEEREIELE —E-=F+ZH++H
Wang Chao 40 Executive Director and managing director of sales and 17 December 2013
marketing

TH HWITEERIEERTISEEE S AL —E-=F+ZH++H
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Qian Yinglan 34 Non-executive Director 12 September 2017
B EMITES —E—+tFhA+=H
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Shen Zhenchang 71 Independent non-executive Director 17 December 2013
= BUIFITES —E-=F+ZH++H
Ng Wing Fai 59 Independent non-executive Director 29 June 2017
REE BUIFITES —E—tFXAZTNHAE
Sun Jiong 77 Independent non-executive Director 29 June 2017
#aa BUIFITES —E—tFXAZTNHAE

EEMBERR AT

T FFER
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HELARKBEHANBERE (4)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weizhong (BR & &), aged 46, is the chairman of the Board,
founder, chief executive officer (“CEO”) of the Group and the executive
Director. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s overall strategic
planning, recipes use and control, distribution network expansion and
overall business operations. He has over 20 years of experience in the
condiment industry in the PRC and possesses unique information regarding
the research, development and intellectual property related to our products,
including the trade-secret recipes of fermentation starter and cooking wine
spices.

Mr. Chen started his career in the condiment industry as early as 1990 and
has accumulated extensive experience in the condiment industry since
then, especially in production, research and development, and sales and
marketing. Before founding our Group in 2005, he was the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Zhong Wei Brewing Co., Ltd. (“Zhong Wei”)
from 1995 to 2012. Mr. Chen completed a business administration advance
class at Zhejiang University (1)L A2 TR EE S AMHE ) in 2008.

Mr. Chen has been a member of the China Condiment Industrial
Association (7 Bl F¥K f2 17 &) since 2008. He is also the chairman of the
Huzhou Rice Wine Industrial Association (#/1 & /B 1% &) since 2012.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (B2 831#), aged 43, is our vice general manager and
executive Director. Mr. Sheng is primarily responsible for the management
of our Group’s financing activities and assisting Mr. Chen to manage the
overall business operations. He has more than 10 years of experience in the
condiment industry, and has extensive management experience in capital
and business operations. Before joining our Group in 2006, he was the
general manager of Zhong Wei from 2001 to 2006.

Mr. Wang Chao (£ ), aged 40, is our managing director of sales and
marketing and executive Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for our
Group’s sales and marketing. He has 15 years of experience in the
condiment industry. Mr. Wang joined Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewing
Factory (81 ZB M EEER) (currently Huzhou Lao Heng He Brewery Co.,
Ltd. (“Huzhou Lao Heng He”) in 1998 where he worked in various
departments, including business operation department and finance
department. Since 2006, Mr. Wang worked in management positions in
Huzhou Lao Heng He’s customer service centre and sales and marketing
department. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhejiang Electronic Polytechnic
School (#/ T4 EF T #E4R), a technical middle school in 1998.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EHRLARBBEHANEERE (%)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Qian Yinglan, aged 34, is our non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company. Ms. Qian is a vice president of
Lunar Capital Partners IV L.P. (“Lunar Capital”). Lunar Capital, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, is a leading private equity fund
focused on investing in China related consumer businesses. Ms. Qian
focuses on consumer and retail industry related investment. Prior to joining
Lunar Capital, from July 2005 to April 2015, Ms. Qian has worked in the
PRC team of KPMG Huazhen Certified Public Accountants and
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting respectively and served as senior
manager, and executed multiple types of capital market deals domestically
and overseas. Ms. Qian received a bachelor of economics degree in June
2005 from the Shanghai International Studies University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Zhenchang (Jt#& &), aged 71, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shen has more than 40 years of experience in the cooking
wine industry. From 1971 to 2006, Mr Shen worked with China Shaoxing
Rice Wine Group (7 B 43 1 & JF & & A& BR 2 7)) (previously known as
Shaoxing City Rice Wine Corporation (%A £ 1 B & 42 /2 7))). Before his
retirement from China Shaoxing Rice Wine Group in 2006, Mr. Shen was
the director of its office of general affairs.

Mr. Shen is a member of China Brewing Industry Association (rice wine
branch) (7 B B8 T 2 1 & = B % &), where he has been the deputy
council director and secretary general since 2000.

Additionally, Mr. Shen currently serves as a member of National Wine
Brewing Standard Technology Committee (£ BIEEBZEL BITEZE€), a
judge at the reviewing committee of China Alcoholic Drinks Association
Science Technology Award (4 BIE % 1 & &} 22 3% 47 £2), and the deputy
director of the editorial board of China Rice Wine magazine ({# Bl = )).

FHITES

BERLZL 345 ARMNIENTEZEREADR
EixEZEEKE - 84+ ALunar Capital Partners
IV L.P. ([ Lunar Capital]) B|#8%, - KRR EZMRHT
Lunar Capital & — X F )+ BI)H & & M5 8B %L FL
EREES  BALTEINBHEEERTETE
B E o B HIA Lunar Capital Z Bl » 84+ B =%
THFLAZ T —AFHAPRELETRNES
BERSTAEEMREEEZARFNTEE
BRETESREE  WREKABRIINZEERATHED
G BUTWN _TEZERFNFEBZ LEIIRE

BHKERS LB -

BYFHITES

MIRERE > 715 BRERMNBILIFRITES - L
FEEEMBTERRRIO0FER B Nt—FF
“EERF RARAERTREAREEEEBR AR
(AT RABEMEBEARR) TR - R T RFHR
hEAEEEEEGRARRKZAT - LR EEE
YNGR Ao
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HELARKBEHANBERE (4)

Mr. Ng Wing Fai (R % #&), aged 59, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Ng is also the chairman of the audit committee, and a member
of the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Ng has over 17 years of experience in audit, taxation
and consultancy in government and nongovernment institutes. Mr. Ng holds
a bachelor’s of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s degree of arts in
international accounting from City University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
bachelor’s degree with Honour in UK and Hong Kong law from The
Manchester Metropolitan University. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a past president
of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors (2011), and a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Ng is an independent non-executive
director of China Automation Group Limited (stock code: 569) since June
2007, a company listed on the Stock Exchange; and an independent non-
executive director of Evergreen International Holdings Limited (stock code:
238) since June 2016, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sun Jiong (%), aged 77, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Sun is also the chairman of the nomination committee, and a member
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Sun is a senior postgraduate engineer. Mr. Sun graduated
from fermentation engineering profession of Wuxi Institute of Light Industry
(#8580 T 2 20%) in 1963. Mr. Sun served as an engineer and the topic
responsible officer (=& & & A) of the Food Fermentation Institute of the
Department of Light Industry of the PRC (F1 BI#8 T 2£ 88 R 2B FT) from
1963 to 1979, and a senior engineer and officer of the Environmental
Protection Research Institute of the Department of Light Industry of the
PRC (7 B #8 T % #f 3z 3% AR # B 5T BT) from 1979 to 1988. Mr. Sun also
served as the deputy general manager of the Food Engineering
Technological Development Company (/B & & T 3 £ iy f 2 42 2 7))
from 1988 to 1991 and the deputy general manager and senior
postgraduate engineer of China National Food Industry (Group) Corporation
(hEERIE(EE) QT from 1991 to 1997. He has also served as the
head of institute, professor and tutor of PhD students of the Food
Fermentation Industry Research Institute (% Bl & G4 28 T 3 #3tht) from
1997 to 2002. Mr. Sun has been the instructor of PhD students of Jiangnan
University since December 2001 and has also acts as part-time professor
of various universities including Zhongshan University, Shandong University,
South China University of Technology, Tianjin University of Science and
Technology and Shanghai University. Mr. Sun has been a senior consultant
of the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology (7 Bl & @ #l £4%
fiTE &) and a food safety expert of the State Food and Drug Administration
since 2002.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGE

MENT (CONTINUED)

EHRLARBBEHANEERE (%)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Name Age Year joined Position

®E Fe MAFH B

Chen Weizhong 46 2005 Chairman of the Board, executive Director and chief executive
officer

BRIETR —ZTERF BERIRE OEENERRTE

Sheng Mingjian 43 2006 Executive Director and vice general manager

LR —EEREF WITEFENEIRLE

Wang Chao 40 2006 Executive Director and managing director of sales and marketing

T —EEREFE WITEFENIEERTISHEEE FRKT

Wan Peiyao 46 2005 Director of production

BIER “TTRF HEREE

Liu Chuanli 37 2012 Financial controller

2H2 ZE—ZfF Pt Y

Mr. Chen Weizhong (B & &), aged 46, is the chairman of the Board,
CEO and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Sheng Mingjian (B2BR{&), aged 43, is our vice general manager and
executive Director. His biographical details are set out above under the
section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management — Executive
Directors” to this annual report.

Mr. Wang Chao (£ #), aged 40, is our managing director of sales and
marketing and executive Director. His biographical details are set out above
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Directors” to this annual report.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

HELARKBEHANBERE (4)

Mr. Wan Peiyao (BI¥Z#), aged 46, is our director of production
department. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s production
management. He has more than 11 years of experience in the condiment
and cooking wine industry. Mr. Wan joined our Group in 2005, and has
worked in various departments including workshop operation department,
cooking wine production department and plant operation department. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Wan was the plant manager and executive
assistant to the general manager of Huzhou Ganchang Wine Company (7
I &7 & f % A BR A7) from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Wan passed the test for
first-class sommelier of PRC (B — #& & B &M) in December 2012,

Mr. Wan graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (47T T ¥ K2
with a bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering (biochemistry) in 1995.

Mr. Liu Chuanli (21/£#8), aged 37, is our financial controller. Mr. Liu joined
our Group in July 2012 and served as the deputy financial controller of
Huzhou Lao Heng He, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and had
more than 11 years of experience in financial management. He obtained a
bachelors’ degree majoring in accounting and e-commerce from Hefei
University (& BEEBt ) in 20083.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

o P W w52 00

BUSINESS REVIEW E 3 C1)

For details of our business review, please refer to the section on HHERKMEKEEHE  S2EAFEREFET
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 7 to this annual report. BRI XERE] 60 -

FINANCIAL REVIEW g JEI)

Overview e

The key financial indicators of the Group are as follows: AREBER T BEFEZWNT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE Year-on-year
2017 2016 Change
—E—tF ZTRF REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARBTR AREFT
Income statement items WERER
Sales e 803,141 831,149 (3.4%)
Gross profit EF 429,526 445,696 (3.6%)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent & A &5 5 A JE(G FH 186,775 206,636 (9.6%)
Earnings before interest, taxes, BRFE - BIE - MER

depreciation and amortization BEAIAE (TRRFIE -

(‘EBITDA”) BiE - ERBHEARE]) 304,417 321,658 (5.4%)
Earnings per share (RMB cents) (Note (a)) @& H (ARED ) (Mt:T (a) 32.3 38.4 (15.9%)
Selected financial ratios HiE B A L R
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 53.6% (0.2%)
Net profit margin attributable to ordinary AR E@EEFE A

equity holders of the parent (%) FEAE R FE R (%) 24.9% (6.4%)
EBITDA margin (%) BRAE - BIE - HER

BRI MEE (%) 38.7% (2.1%)
Return on equity holders’ equity (%) A ARERREIR (%) 10.9% (15.6%)
Gearing ratio (Note (b)) BB E L (3T (o) 32.5% (6.5%)
Notes: MiaE

(a) Please refer to Note 12 to the financial statements of this annual report for the  (q) BERESREMOAE R E  FRERFROI KR
calculation of earnings per share. *~MFE12 0

(o) The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net debtas () HZZT—+EFE+_A=+—H BEABLERTE

at 31 December 2017. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash BB eSS RFERTE - ZERBIRAERERE
equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables and accruals, HERREEEY -  HERBREENESHE - H
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long term liabilities. MENRIENRERTIER  (TESRTREMETAL

Hip=HAE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B DL o i B AT (A

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by 3.4% from RMB831.1 million in
2016 to RMB803.1 million in 2017, primarily attributable to (i) the New Sales
Channels bring significant growth to the Group’s sales in 2017 after certain
amount of time, sales and marketing resources have been devoted by the
Group for construction and penetration of New Sales Channels; and (i) a
decrease in sales from the supermarket channels resulted from a decrease
in sales activities for such channels as the Group has allocated most of its
sales and marketing resources for the establishment of New Sales
Channels.

Revenue from cooking wine products decreased by 6.6% from RMB621.0
million in 2016 to RMB580.2 million in 2017, primarily due to less sales and
marketing resources being devoted to supermarket channel during 2017
which resulted in the decrease in the sales of cooking wine products mainly
sold through the supermarket channel.

Revenue from the Group’s soy sauce products and vinegar products
increased by 4.0% and 0.5%, respectively, from RMB98.7 million and
RMB74.3 million in 2016 to RMB102.6 million and RMB74.7 million in 2017,
respectively. This mainly reflects the increase in sales of the aforesaid
products through the New Sales Channel.

Revenue from other products increased by 22.9% from RMB37.1 million in
2016 to RMB45.6 million in 2017, which was mainly due to the substantial
increase in sales of the fermented bean curd products of the Group.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales decreased by 3.1% from RMB385.5 million in 2016 to
RMB373.6 million in 2017. The decrease in cost of sales was primarily
attributable to the decrease in revenue.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit decreased by 3.6% from
RMB445.7 million in 2016 to RMB429.5 million in 2017. The gross profit
margin decreased from 53.6% in 2016 to 53.5% in 2017, primarily due to
the combined effect of the increase in price of some of our products by
10% in 2017 and lower proportion of sales of products with higher gross
profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B g A (7))

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 134.5% from RMB8.4 million in 2016
to RMB19.8 million in 2017. Other income and gains primarily include
subsidies received, gains from sales of materials, interest income and
foreign exchange gains. The increase in other income and gains was
primarily due to the increase in foreign exchange gains and government
subsidies received.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising expenses,
marketing expenses, promotion expenses, travelling expenses, and
remuneration of our sales employees.

Our selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB81.2 million in
2016 to RMB111.0 million in 2017, and the distribution expenses as a
percentage of the Group’s revenue increased from 9.8% in 2016 to 13.8%
in 2017, primarily as a result of (i) the increase in market expenses to
expand our New Sales Channels; (ii) the increase in salary of the sales
personnel as an incentive for them to promote the establishment of sales
channels; and (i) the increase in logistic costs caused by the expansion of
sales network.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by 13.4% from RMB83.1 million in
2016 to RMB71.9 million in 2017. The decrease in administrative expenses
was due to a decrease in research and development investment resulting
from two factors: the Group is still actively exploring the demand of the
consumers in the New Sales Channels for this period; and the research and
development of improving the technological contents of the manufacturing
craftsmanship and quality of the cooking wine products of the Group have
achieved stage result.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by 20.2% from RMB40.6 million in 2016 to
RMB48.8 million in 2017. The increase in finance costs primarily reflected
the increase in interest expenses from RMB40.6 million in 2016 to RMB48.8
million in 2017 as a result of an increase in the average balance of our bank
and other borrowings in 2017 to support the expansion of our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B DL o i B AT (A

Profit before Tax

Due to the aforesaid reasons, the profit before tax decreased by 12.9%
from RMB248.0 million in 2016 to RMB216.1 million in 2017.

Income Tax Expense

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the
taxable profits, based on the existing laws, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group for
Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou Laohenghe
Brewery Co., Limited (#1/NZ1BFEEEE R A &) and Huzhou Laohenghe
Wine Co., Limited (/N Z1EF1)E % 5 R A 7)), both being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, were granted the “New and Advanced
Technology Enterprise” status and were entitled to the preferential tax rate
of 156% for three consecutive years commencing from 2016, remained
steady compared to that of 2016 (2016: 15%).

Income tax expense decreased by 29.1% from RMB41.3 million in 2016 to
RMB29.3 million in 2017, mainly due to the decrease in profit before tax.

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent decreased by

9.6% from RMB206.6 million in 2016 to RMB186.8 million in 2017, which is
mainly attributable to the aforesaid reasons.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Parent
Basic earnings per share decreased from RMB38.4 cents in 2016 to

RMB32.3 cents in 2017. Decrease in earnings per share was attributable to
the decrease in profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Net Profit Margin

Net profit margin decreased by 1.6 percentage points from 24.9% in 2016
10 23.3% in 2017. The decrease in net profit margin was mainly attributable
to the increase in sales and distributing expenses and finance costs as a
result of the aforesaid reasons.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY POSITION

Prepayments for Non-current Assets

Prepayments for non-current assets of the Group primarily include the
following two aspects: (1) prepayments to equipment manufacturers in
respect of customizing equipment for the Group; and (2) prepayments to
major contractors of the projects before entering into formal construction
contracts. Prepayments for non-current assets were made primarily for
containing the costs of major materials related to capital expenditure so as
to reduce the risk to the Group due to the increasing capital expenditure
scale.

Prepayments for non-current assets increased by 16.5% from RMB335.4
million as at 31 December 2016 to RMB390.7 million as at 31 December
2017. The increase in prepayments for non-current assets was mainly
attributable to our plan to diversify our product structure and expand
production capacity of condiments in the coming year.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables decreased from RMB162.5 million as at 31 December
2016 to RMB129.5 million as at 31 December 2017 and the turnover days
of trade receivables decreased from 67 days in 2016 to 65 days in 2017,
mainly reflecting the increase in the proportion of sales to categories C and
D distributors with shorter credit period. Details of the ageing analysis of
trade receivables are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

We have implemented a multi-category distributor system to manage
distribution of its products since 2011. We classify our distributors into
Categories A (the highest), B, C and D based on their distribution scale and
capabilities.

Inventories

Inventories increased from RMB1,088.4 million as at 31 December 2016 to
RMB1,189.9 million as at 31 December 2017, primarily due to the increase
in work in progress. A substantial part of our inventories are work in
progress, mainly represented by base wine, base soy sauce, semi-finished
soybean paste and base vinegar in the brewing period. Due to the long
production cycle and short sales cycle, we need to keep an abundant stock
of well-aged base wine to cope with the rapid sales growth in the future. In
2017, we increased the inventories of base soy sauce to cope with the
future growth in sales bringing by the matureness of diversified distribution
channel.
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AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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We regularly monitor the inventory level maintained by our distributors. Our
sales representatives maintain frequent telephone or email communications
with each of our Categories A, B, C and D distributors, review their monthly
inventory reports and visit their warehouses on a regular basis. Our sales
representatives visit the warehouses of our Category A and B distributors at
least on a weekly basis and those of Category C and D distributors on a
monthly basis to ensure that they keep optimal stock level and our products
are sold to end customers within the shelf life. We generally expect our
distributors to maintain sufficient stock for 5 to 20 days of supply. In the
event a distributor maintains stocks of more than 20 days of supply, the
relevant sales representatives will assist such distributor in marketing and
promotional activities and suggest orders with a smaller amount to be
placed for the subsequent periods to minimize excess inventory.

As at 31 December 2017, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMBB803.5 million (31 December 2016: RMB525.3 million) were pledged as
floating charge to secure general banking facilities granted to us.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, our total borrowings amounted to RMB954.8
million (31 December 2016: RMB849.0 million), including finance lease
payables with a carrying amount of RMB102.0 million (31 December 2016:
RMB34.4 million).

Our principal sources of liquidity include cash generated from business
operation and bank borrowings. The cash from these sources are primarily
used for our working capital, the expansion of production capacity, other
capital expenditures and debt service requirements.

Foreign currency risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and conducts its operations mainly
in Renminbi. The Group will closely monitor the fluctuations of the Renminbi
exchange rate and give prudent consideration as to entering into any
currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate for hedging
corresponding risks. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
was not engaged in hedging activities for managing foreign exchange rate
risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, we had cash and cash equivalents of RMB443.9
million (31 December 2016: RMB291.8 million). As at 31 December 2017,
we had interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of an aggregate
amount of RMB954.8 million (31 December 2016: RMB849.0 million), which
were denominated in RMB with interest rates from 4.35% to 5.99% per
annum.

Our principal sources of liquidity include cash generated from business
operation, bank borrowings, other borrowings and the proceeds from the
Subscription (as defined below). We used cash from such sources for
working capital, production facility expansions, other capital expenditures
and debt repayment. We expect these uses will continue to be our principal
uses of cash in the future, and that our cash flow will be sufficient to fund
our ongoing business requirements. Meanwhile, we have decided to further
broaden our financing channel to improve our capital structure.

On 23 June 2016, the Company completed a placing of 60,000,000
ordinary shares (with aggregate nominal value of US$30,000) at a placing
price of HK$6 per Share to Natural Seasoning (Hong Kong) Limited (the
“Subscriber”) in accordance with the subscription agreement dated 2 June
2016 (the “Subscription”). The Subscriber is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and its principal activity is owning and
operating companies or businesses focused in the condiments market in
the PRC. The Subscriber and its ultimate beneficial owner are independent
third parties. For further details of the Subscription, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 2 June 2016 and 23 June 2016,
respectively. The net proceeds after deduction of relevant expenses
(including but not limited to legal expenses and disbursements) from the
Subscription were approximately HK$356,100,000, representing a net price
of approximately HK$5.935 per share. The Board was of the view that the
Subscription is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole as the cooperation with the Subscriber and its controlling shareholder
will (i) broaden the shareholder base of the Company and enhance the
Company’s profile; and (i) the Subscription will strengthen the Company’s
capital base and financial position. The net proceeds from the Subscription
will be used by the Company for general working capital of the Group.
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As at the date of this annual report, the breakdown of the use of net
proceeds from the Subscription is as follows:

Intended use

RAERA
T :

RBEEMBFRFENFARE

Amount utilized The remaining balance

Repg EBALE 8

(Approximately  (Approximately  (Approximately  (Approximately — (Approximately  (Approximately

HKS million) RMB million) HKS million) RMB million) HKS million) RMB million)

(MEEET) (WEBARY) (WEEET) (WEEARE) (WEEET) (WEEARE)

Expansion of sales network BAHERS 142.4 121.8 175 100.5 24.9 21.3
Expansion of production facllies ~ #AEER1E 178.1 152.3 178.1 152.3 - -
General working capital —REELS 35.6 305 35.6 305 - -
Total st 356.1 304.6 331.2 283.3 249 213

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group was 30.4% as at 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of 2.1 percentage points over 2016.

The gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity and net debt
as at 31 December 2017. Net debt includes total debt net of cash and cash
equivalents. Total debt includes trade payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long term
liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB103.6
million (31 December 2016: RMB56.1 million), which was mainly related to
the construction in progress for expansion of plant and increase of
machinery.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, we did not have any material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, our inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB803.5 million, property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
RMB141.2 million, leasehold land with a carrying amount of RMB34.8
million, and deposits with a carrying amount of RMB76.0 million were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to us.

Except as disclosed in this annual report, we have not entered into any off-
balance sheet guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment
obligations of any third party. It does not have any interest in any
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit
support to it or engage in leasing or hedging or research and development
or other service.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B B i B g A (7))

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Company has no material acquisition and disposal as at 31 December
2017.

MARKET RISKS
Credit Risk

The Group’s major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s
exposure to a substantial number of trade receivables, prepayments and
other receivables, time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s trade receivables are typically unsecured and derived from revenue
earned from customers in the PRC, which are exposed to credit risk. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that the sales of products are made
to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and has strict control over
credit limits of trade and other receivables.

In addition, the balance of trade receivables is monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are disclosed in Notes 16 and 17 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk management policy
to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available funding
through capital contribution and bank borrowings. The Company’s
management also monitors the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants. For details on the maturity profile of the
Group'’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017, please refer to Note 35
to the financial statements in this annual report.

Risk of Increasing Capital Expenditure Scale

The primary capital expenditure of the Group was used for building plants,
acquiring production and wine storage equipment for the purpose of
expanding production capability. In recent years, the Group continued to
optimize the production process and expand production capability of
condiment products. If the operating condition declines in the future, the
annual profit may decrease due to increase in fixed operating costs as a
result of the aforesaid reasons.
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EMPLOYEES AND WELFARE
CONTRIBUTION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 606 full-time
employees (31 December 2016: 561). The employees’ remuneration
packages are determined with reference to their experience and
qualifications and general market conditions. The remuneration policies,
bonus, evaluation systems and training programs for employees of our
Group were implemented continuously according to policies disclosed in
the 2016 annual report and no change has been made in 2017.

The total remuneration paid to the Group’s employees (excluding Directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately RMB50.8 million (2016: approximately
RMB31.8 million), which included the Group’s contribution to the employee
benefit plan for the year 2017 of RMB7.8 million (2016: RMB4.3 million).
Details of the employee benefit expense are disclosed in Note 6 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The following table sets forth the Group’s full-time employees by function
as at 31 December 2017:

BEREBEINHE

RZZE—+F+-A=+—H AEBHEEEXY
6B EHEE (ZFT—A"F+=-A=+—H : 561
%) BEFMARNSERSENERRELG UAKRE

BMRMEE - AEBEEEMNHMIEEK - 7640 5
HRRELEIGBEEZRN T "FFRRE

MEREIT BR T FREEs -

RBE-Z—+F+-RA=+—HIEFEXNTR
SEHREEzFMERE (TERREZFRZEHITHRAR
F) RWARE08ABIT(ZT—RF: HAR
H3B8EETL) BRAKER_FT—tEHESR
BAGFEERNHIARE78AEIT(ZF—RF
ARMBASAET) - BERVASFBRERASE
R TERRMES

TR AEFHEE_Z—EF+-_A=1+—HK
B 2BES

As at 31 December 2017
BE-_Z—tH&+=-A=+—H

Number of
employees % of total
EEAZ hEHES T
Production HE 260 42.9%
Management and administration BB NITHERE 20 3.3%
Sales and marketing HE M2 234 38.6%

Quality control, research and development BEE - AR R EM

and others 92 15.2%
Total @t 606 100.0%
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The Group has designed an evaluation system to assess the performance
of its employees. This system forms the basis for determination of
employees’ salaries, bonuses and promotions. We believe the salaries and
bonuses that our Group’s employees receive are competitive with market
rates. Under applicable PRC laws and regulations, our Group is subject to
social insurance contribution plans, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance schemes.

We place a strong emphasis on providing training to our employees in order
to enhance their technical and product knowledge as well as
comprehension of industry quality standards and work place safety
standards. We also provide regular on-site and off-site training to help our
employees to improve their skills and knowledge. These training courses
range from further educational studies to basic production process and skill
training to professional development courses for its management personnel.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year of 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year of 2017, the Group made charitable donations of
RMB67,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A8 56 8 16 el

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate AR REFE AHIFEE RRE #IFSIZEMDES
governance practices for enhancing accountability and transparency of the A& IES ARG Z HEUHREHE -EF2 R
Company to its investors and Shareholders. The Board and the ARAFRIEEEBARENEGHEBENHIAFHREANERE
management of the Company are committed to conducting the Group’s 7% * M{EEMEE - BIF D EE 4L AEHERE - 2
businesses in a transparent and responsible manner, and they believe good &%k « AJEFE XKL E - U RIEFARERER
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for effective  (B{&E 77 et —(ET A s ik 2 fEZR -

management, a healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and

enhancing Shareholders’ value in the long term.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (A) BEERESR
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the KRR ERABEBHERZERRAIES
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the EWHEA(EARER]) ([ LR A K&k
“Governance Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules TS CEEATARCEE ARE(E
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong BRI RTEASTRNEX  MEEEXRE R
Kong Limited (as amended from time to time) (the “Listing Rules”) BEHMESAEHENSTE -

as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has HEz-_T—+F+-_A=+—"HIEFE &K
complied with the code provisions set out in the Governance Code RNRIBEPEIRSTRIFTHE 2 PR - HER
except the deviations as set out below in this report. WE T X 2 mEESE AR o

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the REIREFSEENDGEERENR E=F
Company with an aim to achieve and maintain a high standard of TR RERANARINER -

corporate governance practices.

(B) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR B) EEREREEB 2R SR
MANAGEMENT’S SECURITIES 2
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities AR AR EWRAIKSE 2 (EH
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model Code”) as set BITABFETEFR 2 RETAD (1B%E
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct FA)  EREFRAKERRERRE (AR
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors ZBAISEBRE - ARl ARBARE
and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office KARAESFZNBHEE) BREEARNFE
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to FZATRTRA

the Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they have FBARARR 2REFRIARSINEE
complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December “EEFFT AT RALEFEEAETR
2017. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance TR bEOh ARFW BBRAKE SR
of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group during ERERBE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HIE
the year ended 31 December 2017. FREAEMERZEESFANITS -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(C) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, including establishing and overseeing the Company’s
strategic development, business plans, financial objectives, capital
investment proposals and assumes the responsibilities of corporate
governance of the Company.

The Board gave their input and considered the priorities and
initiatives, aiming at developing a sustainable plan for the Company to
generate and preserve its long-term corporate values and to achieve
its business strategies and objectives.

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its powers
that it may think fit to a Director or member of senior management of
the Company. The Board has formulated clear and specific rules and
policies on such delegation of power to facilitate efficient operation of
the Company and is supported by three board committees together
the “Board Committees”, which are audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”) , remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”).

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all Directors to disclose
to the Company annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
with an indication of the time involved.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance for all Directors in
respect of legal actions against the Directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Functions and Duties of the Board

The Board supervises the management of business and affairs of the
Company. The primary duties of the Board include:

(@ overall management of the business and strategic
development;

(b)  deciding business plans and investment plans;

(c)  monitoring the ongoing operation of the Company and to
ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
Shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders;

(d)  convening general meetings and reporting to the Shareholders;
and

(e)  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred by
Shareholders in general meetings.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility of daily
operations, business strategies and day to day management of the
Company to the CEO and the senior management.

The senior management, under the leadership of the CEO, is
delegated by the Board the authority and responsibility for the daily
operations and management of the Group. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions to be
entered by the Company.

Board Members

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Board consist of the following seven Directors,
including three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors:

EEENRERRBE
EFREEARAEBREGOER - EF
FNEEREEE

(@) EBRREERMBBEE

b) REXRBEEINRZEE

© EBEFATMBELE  URERLE
BT R B A BB R RER % -
B VR S AR A T AR B PO T35

(d) BFBRERRERABRER : K&

@ HWITERRRERRELETHOHAME
h - B REBE -

EFENALFAREE XBRBELAE
ERZBENECHETEARMTIELER
BEE -

EERHTENRET RRERERES
CHRAKERREERERENENREME -
PrEg iR Bee X TEEB I EE Hinsd - XA
RBERIMEFNEARS 2/ HEARBES
S -

ExERE
BHE_ZT—+HF+A=+—HIEFEER
AEREY EFTAHAUTLREFAEK
BREZF2HTEE  —BIFRTEER=S
B IFITESE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman and CEOQ) RETREE (EFHEEBRBYRITE)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRAAfE A

Mr. Wang Chao FHESEAE
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Sun Qingdong (Resigned on 12 September 2017)
Ms. Qian Yinglan (Appointed on 12 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Lei Jiasu (Resigned on 29 June 2017)

Mr. Ma Chaosong (Resigned on 29 June 2017)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai (Appointed on 29 June 2017)

Mr. Sun Jiong (Appointed on 29 June 2017)

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among the Directors of the Company.

An updated list of the roles and functions of Directors is maintained
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and the
Company shall keep updating whenever necessary. The details of the
Directors’ biographical information are contained in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy on 25 March
2014 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee will evaluate the balance and blend of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity experiences,
including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and educational
background, and merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company at all times complied with the requirement of Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, which requires an issuer’s board of
directors to have at least one-third of its members being independent
non-executive directors. In addition, the Company has duly complied
with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, which requires
the issuer’s board must include at least three independent non-
executive directors and at least one of the independent non-executive
directors to have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

EEMBERR AT

(CONTINUED)

1056 8 v el (7))

FHITESE
BREREE(R_T—LFNAT-HEE)
BREAZLT(M-_Z—LFNAT-RAEZE)

BYFHITES
MRS L
BREELE(NC
FRMELER
REBALE
(RZZB—tFRAZTNLEEZRT)
BREEE(MR-ZE—LFRAZTNARESZE)

—tFERAZTAREE)
—tFERAZTAREE)

=
=

ARBIBEFZRAMEN T - X5 Kk
HAib B ARKARRIRR -

BNNEFACKBRFECSTIENAAR
KEEZ PV uh - MARRKRA & EHR
BEH - ZEFNREERENFBHARANFR
[BEERERERANERE] —&0-

ARABERZE—NMF=A-_+HHERE
FERELTEBR((EEEREZ T
D) e ARRARBARFE ESERES T
ICHIRARERBEZERRS - EREKE
LI BREEHI AERESERESL T
IEMRBMO TS - HINEESRIRREES
eIz EEgRENEE  BRES T
HESEMNFEHERSE  TURAEBZ R
P Z it B AEME  BEETRANFR -
MR ERHBEES UREEZAZBOE
ERAAEESRMEMNTE -

BYFHITESE

RAR—EHET ETHRAEIA0AEZHE
ZREBERBTACESSELE=H2—
EABIMIERITES - fhHN ARRIEZ
A FHRAE 31001 KR FE3.102) 1§ -
ZERTRTAZESSGNVARREL =4
BYINTEERELBE LB UIFRNTE
EHARNEEEER UG AR E R
BEMG o

T FFER

35



36

38 i ol ()

Mr. Ng Wing Fai, chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and
being one of the independent non-executive Director, possesses over
17 years of experience in audit, taxation and consultancy in
government and non-government institutions. Together with another
two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Shen Zhenchang and
Mr. Sun Jiong, all of whom have wide exposure and experience in the
cooking food industry and provide the Group with diversified
expertise and experience.

Their views and participation in Board and Board committee meetings
bring independent judgment and advice on issues relating to the
Group’s strategies, performance, conflicts of interest, management
process and to ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors on their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Board considers that each of them be independent. The Board
believes that the present structure of the Board can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and provide an effective
system of checks and balance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the Company.

The Board considers that the balance between executive and non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and the Group as a whole. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership. The Board has separate and independent
access to the senior management and the company secretary at all
times.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, are

clearly identified as such in all corporate communications containing
the names of the Directors.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term. The initial term of
office for each Director is a term of three years from their respective
appointment date and is subject to retirement by rotation at an annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) at least once every three years.
According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the relevant
AGM. In addition, the Articles provide that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment, whereas
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM. The Director
appointed by the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election at
the relevant general meeting.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting of the members convened
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office notwithstanding
to the contrary in the Articles or in any agreement between the
Company and such Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles, Mr. Chen Weizhong. Mr.
Sheng Mingjian, Mr. Wang Chao, Ms. Qian Yinglan, Mr. Ng Wing Fai
and Mr. Sun Jiong will retire from office as Director by rotation at the
forthcoming 2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

The Company has regularly provided the Directors with information of
relevant training courses. Updates on the amendments of applicable
rules and regulations have been given to the Directors from time to
time. The Directors have provided the Company with a record of their
training received in 2017. A summary of the Directors participation in
continuous professional training for the year ended 31 December
2017 is as follows:

EECHEBEERRE

AR AE SRR RN ER -
B2 AR BT E AR MG T
RURET BERNALATREESEN =T
— L EFERHEINRE - EERBE_T
—tF+-AS+—ALERLROKES
ST -

Attending briefings/

seminars/ Reading materials/
conferences Regulatory updates
HEE S mEEr
Name of Director EEfR BHE 8% EREHER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Weizhong PR A LA v v/
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRPAfR A v/ v/
Mr. Wang Chao FiBEA v/ 4
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Ms. Qian Yinglan REHEA T v v
Independent non-executive Directors HUIFHITEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang Y IA=P e v/ v/
Mr. Ng Wing Fai Rt v v/
Mr. Sun Jiong FER A v v

Inter nally, the Company’s senior management, including the
executive Directors, will implement a training plan and conduct
training sessions for its key staff members on a continuing basis. The
Directors are required to submit to the Company details of training
sessions taken by them in each financial year for the Company’s
maintenance of proper training records of the Directors.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Governance Code, the Board
should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and under code
provision A.2.7 of the Governance Code, the chairman of the board
should at least annually hold meeting with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non- executive Directors) without the
executive Directors present.

A tentative schedule for regular Board meetings for 2018 has been
provided to the Directors. At least 14 days’ notice for all regular
Board meetings will be given to all Directors and all Directors must be
given the opportunity to include items or businesses for discussion in
the agenda. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice will be
given. Relevant agenda and accompanying Board papers will be sent
to all Directors at least three days in advance of every regular Board
meeting.

All matters and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, will be recorded in minutes
of Board meeting or other Board committees meetings in sufficient
detail. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board/Board committee
meetings will be sent to all Directors/committee members for
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after the
respective meetings are held. The final versions of these minutes are
kept by the Company secretary of the Company and are available for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director and auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board convened a
total of 4 Board meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1
Nomination Committee meeting, 2 Audit Committee meetings, based
on the need of the operation and business development of the
Company. Besides, the Directors also attended the 2017 AGM,
which is the only general meeting held in 2017, to understand the
views of the shareholders.
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All Board members attended the said meetings in person or by
means via telephonic conferencing, which constituting presence at a
meeting as if he has been present in person under the Articles. The
Board intends to meet at least four times per year in the future, and
the chairman of the Board intends to hold at least one meeting per
year with the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board considers that
all meetings have been legally and properly convened in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations (including the Listing Rules and
the Articles). With the assistance of the company secretary, the
chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board meetings
and Board committee meetings are convened in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Articles, the terms of reference of the
respective Board committees and the Listing Rules. The Director’s
attendance at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings” below.

Upon making reasonable request to the Company, Board members
have the right to seek independent professional advice or services at
the Company’s expense to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving substantial
Shareholder(s) or Director(s) arise and the Board considers the matter
to be material, the Company will hold a physical Board meeting to
discuss and consider the matter, instead of passing a written
resolution. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be
required to be present at that Board meeting.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee HEEEEREEZESTE
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board BEEEHEN _E—TtERETHEIESS
committee meetings and 2017 AGM held during 2017 is set out as % EELZEEEEN_T—T+FREE
follows. FREMFEAETIAT ©

Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

meeting meeting meeting meeting 2017 AGM
“E-tf
Exg EZ RE £ RRBF
Name of Director EEpE &% £E28E ZEg8E ZEgER PN -1
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. Chen Weizhong BREBEE 4/4 TEA TEA TEA n
(Chairman of the Board) (BEE2ER)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRELE 4/4 TEA TEA TEA n
Mr. Wang Chao TRk 4/4 Tk TEA TEA 17
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Sun Qingdong BEREE 1/4 1/2 NEH TiEH 01
(Resigned on 12 September 2017) (R=Z2—tF
AA+=BEfE)
Ms. Qian Yinglan BREZL il 0/0 TEA TER TEA
(Appointed on 12 September 2017)  (R=F—+4
NATZBEZHF)
Independent non-executive Directors B3 #iTEE
Mr. Shen Zhenchang WRE %A 4/4 2/2 17 " 17
Mr. Lei Jiasu ERELAE 1/2 11 1/1 1/1 11
(Resigned on 29 June 2017) (RZE—+F
NAZTAREE)
Mr. Ma Chaosong EHNEE 1/2 /1 11 11 17
(Resigned on 29 June 2017) (NZE—+F
NAZTAREE)
Mr. Ng Wing Fai REERAE 3/3 il TEA TEA A
(Appointed on 29 June 2017) (RZE—tF
NAZThREZME)
Mr. Sun Jiong BEEE 3/3 11 A TEA MM
(Appointed on 29 June 2017) (RZE—+tF

RAZTNBEZE)

ZEMBEARLAR —T—tFFR 11



42

38 i ol ()

Corporate Governance Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the following corporate
governance responsibilities:

o develop and review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and put forward recommendations to
the Board;

° review and monitor the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
regarding compliance with laws and regulatory provisions;

° develop, review and monitor code of conduct and compliance
manual for staff and Directors (if any);

° review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

° develop shareholder communications policy and regularly
review the policy to ensure its effectiveness.

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Governance Code provides that the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and the CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chen Weizhong (“Mr. Chen”) has continually served as both the
chairman and CEO of the Company since its incorporation. He is
responsible for managing the Board and the business of the Group.
Although this deviates from the practice in code provision A.2.1 of the
Governance Code, Mr. Chen has considerable and extensive
experience in the cooking wine industry and management in general.
The Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Company to
have an executive chairman so the Board can benefit from his
knowledge of the business and his capability in leading the Board in
discussing the strategy and long-term development of the Group.
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From a corporate governance point of view, the decisions of the
Board are made collectively by way of voting and therefore the
chairman should not be able to monopolize the voting result. The
Board considers that the balance of power between the Board and
the senior management can still be maintained under the current
structure and there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.
The Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committees also
regularly review the structure and composition of the Board and will
make appropriate recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining and implementing a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

Mr. Chen, as the chairman of the Board, is responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive in a timely manner, adequate information
which is accurate, clear, complete and reliable. He ensures that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings.
Mr. Chen is also responsible for ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures are maintained, all Directors make full and
active contribution to the Board’s affairs, and the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Under the leadership of Mr. Chen, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. Appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
Mr. Chen will ensure appropriate steps are taken and the
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

A culture of openness and constructive relations among Directors are
promoted within the Board, facilitating effective contribution of non-
executive Directors and ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive Directors.

In the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Chen, the chairman of the
Board has met with the independent non-executive Directors (without
the presence of the executive Directors) once to discuss, and obtain
independent views of, the Board affairs.
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A

R (M)

(E) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(F)

The term of Ms. Qian Yinglan, the Company’s incumbent non-
executive director, shall last for two years from 12 September 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Delegation by the Board

The Board is supported by the Board Committees, and the Board
has delegated various responsibilities to the Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All Board Committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to public on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has provided the Board Committees with sufficient
resources and the Board Committees may seek independent
professional advice as and when required at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 December
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and the Governance Code. The Audit Committee currently
has four members, namely Mr. Ng Wing Fai, Mr. Sun Jiong, Mr. Shen
Zhenchang and Ms. Qian Yinglan. Mr. Ng Wing Fai, the Company’s
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and possess the appropriate
professional qualifications required under the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee has access to professional advice, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems of the Company, nominate
and monitor external auditor, oversee the audit process and perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board on an
annual basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings, with all members present in person or
through telephonic conferencing, during which the following works
were performed:

o Assessed the independence of the Company’s auditors;

o Discussed with external auditors about the scope of work and
fees in respect of their audit work for the year ended 31
December 2017;

o Met with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the audit
procedures and accounting issues;

o Reviewed and discussed the audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the unaudited interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 with the senior
management of the Company and external auditor;

° Reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group;

o Reviewed the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
other issues related to the Company’s accounting practice;
and

° Appointment of external auditors (subject to AGM approval)
and arrangements for the employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the above section headed “Attendance at Board
and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Governance Code. The Remuneration
Committee has three members, namely Mr. Shen Zhenchang, Mr. Ng
Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong. Mr. Shen Zhenchang, the Company’s
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has access to professional advise, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
determine and make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure of the remuneration (including bonuses and other
compensation) payable to the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to establish a
formal and transparent procedure for development of remuneration
policy, and ensuring no Director or his/her associate is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
will consult with chairman of the Board about the remuneration
proposals for the other executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company held one meeting in
2017 to review and make recommendations on the existing
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management. The
attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at the above
meeting is set out in the section headed “Attendance at Board and
Board Committee Meetings” above.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on websites of the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Governance Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

(CONTINUED)
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RIBERTRZTRIEXEBISER BE=
E—tFt A=t HLFESREEE
B ERF I Bl 2 FEHIE ST

Number of Individual

HMEE(ART) A
Nil-1,000,000 Z£-1,000,000 5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements in
this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 17
December 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Sun Jiong, Mr.
Shen Zhenchang and Mr. Ng Wing Fai. Mr. Sun Jiong, the
Company'’s independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee has access to professional advice, if required, and is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
compositions to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying suitably
qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning of Directors. Furthermore, it also assesses the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in 2017, during
which the diversity, structure, size and composition of the Board, the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-election at the
2017 AGM were reviewed and considered, and relevant
recommendation was made to the Board. The attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the above meeting is set out in
the section headed “Attendance at Board and Board Committee
Meetings” above.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
takes into account the various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
discussed and agreed on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommends them to
the Board for adoption. The Nomination Committee considers an
appropriate balance of diversity perspective of the Board is
maintained. The Board Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee annually, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to certain criteria such as
the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience, skills and expertise
of the candidate, board diversity aspects and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities. External recruitment professionals might be engaged
to carry out selection process when necessary.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

(G) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s external auditor,
Ernst & Young, during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:
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NEFEREZTTICBER(WER) - UH#RF
HARIE -

REFEEARREFREAR  BEEEG2
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B B5 - RENERNE  EFEKE
Rt TEMZEEAHBTEREREE
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Remuneration

Paid/Payable

e EAEE

RMB’000

Service Category PR 75 28 Bl AR®EFTT

Audit Services ZE R 1,450
Non-audit Services LB RS

— Agreed upon —BEERT 350

Total 5T 1,800
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors for
annual audit and non-audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the
Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of Emst & Young
as the Company’s external auditors for the financial year ending 31
December 2018 which is subject to the approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held on 31 May 2018
(2018 AGM").

(H) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR

FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.
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CONTROL

The Boar d is responsible for maintaining effective risk management
and internal control systems and conducting regular review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of
the Company. The risk management and Internal Control systems of
the Group are characterised by distinct division between power and
authority, clear procedures, high transparency and efficiency. The
Company has worked out a procedure for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks of the Company. Business departments
including the production and sales departments are responsible for
identifying, supervising and evaluating the risks related to themselves,
and report to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis.
The senior management shall evaluate and set priorities for the
identified risks according to the procedure set by the Board’s Audit
Committee, and then submit risk alleviation plans to the Audit
Committee which shall appoint officers responsible for risk
management.

The Company has formulated the insider information policies
according to the Securities & Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules. The Company’s Directors, senior management and all others
relevant employees are provided with the guidelines to ensure that
the Company promptly disclose the insider information under
reasonable and practicable circumstances. The guideline contains a
series of procedure to ensure that the information are kept
confidential before they are disclosed to the general public, and shall
publicly disclose such information immediately if the Company
considers that it is impossible to keep it confidential as required.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of
failing to achieve the business objectives and can only make
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations. However, the system can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatements or losses.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
Management of the Company provides all relevant information to the
Board, giving its members sufficient information and explanation that
it needs to discharge their responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee and
the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Company,
respectively including the adequacy of r esources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Board considers that
there are no significant defects in the Company’s risk management
and internal control system in terms of completeness, reasonableness
and effectiveness.

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the
Board for its decision. The management team of the Company holds
meetings regularly to review and discuss with executive Directors on
daily operational issues, financial and operating performance as well
as to monitor and ensure the management properly implement the
directions and strategies set by the Board.

The senior management of the Company has provided the Board
with sufficient explanation and information to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before it for approval.

Currently, the Group has not established an inter nal audit function.
The Board has reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit
function within the Group, and is of the opinion that in view of the
current scale and nature of the operations of the Group, it is more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to carry
out internal audit services for the Group.

The Board will continue, with the assistance of the Audit Committee
and external independent professionals if necessary, to review and
improve the Group’s internal controls system, taking into account the
prevailing regulatory requirements, the Group’s business
development and the interests of shareholders.
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Mr. Au Wai Keung (“Mr. Au”) served as the company secretary of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017. Mr. Au is a
director of Arion and Associates Limited, a corporate secretarial and
accounting services provider in Hong Kong. Mr. Au possesses the
professional qualifications that the Stock Exchange has considered
acceptable and has taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Mr. Au’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen
Weizhong, the chairman, CEO and executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Au is responsible for providing advice to the Board on corporate
governance matters.

(K) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company (www.hzlaohenghe.com) and Stock Exchange after
each Shareholders’ meeting. The Articles allow a Shareholder to
attend and vote at a general meeting or to appoint a proxy, who
needs not be a Shareholder, to attend the meeting and vote thereat
on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons for
election as Directors, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to communicate
with the Company by email: ir02226@hzlaohenghe.com.
Shareholders may also put forward their written enquiries or
requisitions to the Board at Balidian Town, Food and Industrial Park,
Wuxing District, Huzhou City, PRC (Attention: the Board of Directors).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor relations
play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value, enhancing the
corporate transparency as well as establishing market confidence.
The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions. Updated key information and business development of the
Group are also available on the Company’s website to enable
Shareholders and investors to have timely access to information
about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through general meetings which
provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board. Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will
be available at the AGMs of the Company to address Shareholders’
queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure effective
Shareholders’ communication and transparency.
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There has been no change in the Articles since the Listing Date. An
up to date version of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The 2017 AGM was an important occasion where the Board and the
Shareholders could communicate directly with each other. The
chairmen of the Board, the directors and the external auditor, Ernst &
Young, were present at the 2017 AGM to communicate with the
Shareholders. The 2017 AGM circular distributed to all Shareholders
before the 2017 AGM contained information regarding the proposed
resolutions.

In addition, the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The Company will strive to strengthen investor relationships and

maintain transparency of the operating strategies, financial
performance and development prospects of the Company.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 December
2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company, and its subsidiaries established in the PRC are primarily engaged
in the manufacturing of cooking wine and other condiment products in
China under the “Lao Heng He” (“ Z18%1”) brand.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 1 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue and operating profit for the year by principal activities is set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and Note 5 and Note 6 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out on pages 83 to 90 of this annual report.

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
RMB6.5 cents per ordinary Share (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Subject to the approval of the Proposed
Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 31 May 2018 (the “2018 AGM”), the
Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or about 4 July 2018.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

A)

(B)

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and
Vote at the 2018 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28 May
2018 to 31 May 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all
Share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant Share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May 2018.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 12 June
2018 to 15 June 2018, (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
Proposed Final Dividend, all completed Share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
11 June 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements in this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to RMB855.9 million of which RMB37.6 million has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 26 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note 21 and Note 22 to
the financial statements in this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would give rise to
disclosure obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weizhong (Chairman)
Mr. Sheng Mingjian
Mr. Wang Chao

Non-executive Director

Mr. Sun Qingdong (Resigned on 12 September 2017)
Ms. Qian Yinglan (Appointed on 12 September 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shen Zhenchang

Mr. Ma Chaosong (Resigned on 29 June 2017)
Mr. Lei Jiasu (Resigned on 29 June 2017)

Mr. Ng Wing Fai (Appointed on 29 June 2017)
Mr. Sun Jiong (Appointed on 29 June 2017)

Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles and the wishes of the Directors,
Mr. Chen Weizhong, Mr. Sheng Mingjian, Mr. Wang Chao, Ms. Qian
Yinglan, Mr. Ng Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong will retire from office as Director
by rotation at the forthcoming 2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Company’s circular to be dispatched to
Shareholders will contain detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 20 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors (including those Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2017 AGM) has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries, as applicable, within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 16.1 and 16.2 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2 and 15.3 of
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation
given by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits, retirement
benefit scheme contribution) paid to the Company’s Directors in aggregate
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were approximately
RMB920,000 and RMB1,120,000, respectively.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, retirement benefit
scheme contribution) paid to our Group’s five highest paid individuals in
aggregate for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were
approximately RMB308,000 and RMB472,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments were paid by our
Group to any director of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 of the
financial statements in this annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are

payable, for the year ended 31 December 2017 by our Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors nor the controlling Shareholders of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competed or was likely compete with,
either directly or indirectly, the business of the Group.

On 8 January 2014, Mr. Chen Weizhong and Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited (the “Covenantors”), and the Company (for itself and as trustee for
each of its subsidiaries) entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-
competition Deed”), pursuant to which each of the Covenanters has
irrevocably, jointly and severally given certain non-competition undertakings
to the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries). Details
of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders — Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

The Covenantors declar ed that they have complied with the Non-
competition Deed. The independent non-executive Directors have
conducted such review for the year ended 31 December 2017 and also
reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Non-
competition Deed has been fully complied.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect them from
any loss to which the Directors of the Company might be liable arising from
their actual or alleged misconduct.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters, no
contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence as at the end of the year or at any time during 2017.

LOAN OR GUARANTEE FOR LOAN
GRANTED TO THE DIRECTORS

During 2017, the Group had not made any loan or provided any guarantee
for any loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, senior management, its
ultimate controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of the associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

Interests in Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2017
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LERANE

2BITRA

Name of Director EERSR 51 Rty HERDEE BMABF D

Mr. Chen Weizhong FRET R A Interest in a controlled corporation™® 281,860,750 48.70%
22 1] 2K [ A e ()

Beneﬂmal owner 362,500 0.06%

EmfA A

Note: These shares are held by Key Shine Global Holding Limited (“‘Key Shine”). The
entire issued share capital of Key Shine is owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong. Mr.
Chen Weizhong is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Key Shine
under SFO.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
31 December 2017, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company has any interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company and or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
each of them has taken or deemed to have taken under the SFO) or which
will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which will be required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 or the period following
31 December 2017 up to the date of this annual report, was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of
the Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during such period.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as are known to the Board, the following
parties (other than any Directors or chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register, kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of

the Company as at 31 December 2017

BE-—Z—+tE+-A=+—HREXA
AR R BERD 2FR

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital®
RN
BRITRAE
Name g/ B ERtME BERGEAE [ NER Al
Key Shine Global Holdings Limited? Key Shine Global Holdings Beneficial Owner 281,860,750 48.70%
Limited® EmlEA
Ms. Xing Liyu® MR ELZ L@ Interest of spouse 282,223,250 48.76%
[IRLErE
China Construction Bank Corporation® R R IRITRN Person having a security 235,424,000 40.68%
BRAF interest in shares (note 4)
BERNHERER AT (BizE4)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd® hRESIRERR Person having a security 235,424,000 40.68%
BERRW interest in shares (note 4)
BEERNERER AT (BisE4)
Mr. Xie Zhikun REELE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
corporation (note 5)
ZEHEE RS (BFzE5)
Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment EE o BHNTIHHE 25 Beneficial Owner 72,625,000 12.55%
No. 2 QDII Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 Z7532-8 B3 QDI & — EREAA (note 5)
AefEtatE (KIzE5)
Chongaing Zhongxin Rongbang Investment & & d ¥ gt 48 & d 0 Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Center (Limited Partnership) (BER&%) corporation (note 5)
K EE R (KIzE5)
Chongaing Zhongxin Rongchuang EEPHALIIREARAR Interestin a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Investment Limited corporation (note 5)
ZEHEE RS (BIzE5)
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Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
Number of issued Share
Nature of interests Shares held capital®
BARAT
BRITRAE
Name wE/EB BHEME BRERBHE BB
China Innovative Capital Management RHTELAIE RNEIREPR /AT Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Limited corporation (note 5)
T EER (GETY
Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital TR ERHEAREE Interest in a controlled 72,625,000 12.55%
Management Limited BRAF] corporation (note 5)
REthEEER (Ff5E5)
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited Natural Seasoning Beneficial owner 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International (HK) Limited ~ Ezm#EA A (note 6)
International (HK) Limited) (A% A China Seasoning (KFzEs)
International (HK) Limited)
Natural Seasoning International Limited Natural Seasoning Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
(formerly known as China Seasoning International Limited corporation (note 6)
International Limited) (B778 A China Seasoning X%l EE s (FF3E6)
International Limited)
Lunar Capital Partners IV LP Lunar Capital Partners IV LP  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
corporation (note 6)
T EER (GET)
Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP Lunar Capital Partners IV GP,  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
LP corporation (note 6)
ZEHEEER (FifzE6)
LCM-IV General Partner Ltd. LCM-IV General Partner Ltd.  Interest of a controlled 60,000,000 10.37%
corporation (note 6)
T EEER GET)
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The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 578,750,000
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

The entire issued share capital of Key Shine Global Holdings Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Weizhong.

Ms. Xing Liyu is the spouse of Mr. Chen Weizhong. Under the SFO, Ms. Xing
Liyu is deemed to be interested.

Key Shine Global Holdings Limited charged 235,424,000 Shares to China
Construction Bank Corporation, as security for its subscription of a note issued
by Key Shine Global Holdings limited. China Construction Bank Corporation is
owned by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as to approximately 57.11% and
therefore Central Huijin Investment Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
235,424,000 Shares which China Construction Bank Corporation is interested
in.

These Shares are held by Hwabao Overseas Markets Investment No. 2 QDI
Single Unit Trust Plan 32-8 (£ & « IRINTI5RE 257 271 32-8 HIQDI E—&
% {5 5T &7 &/ ( (“Hwabo Trust’), which is entrusted by Chongging Zhongxin
Rongbang Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (& B #1 gl & E & D
(BRA%)) (“Chongging Zhongxin (LLP)”), which is managed by
Chongaing Zhongxin Rongchuang Investment Limited (B & ¥Rt AIIRE B
B2 A2 A]) (“Chongqing Zhongxin”). Chongging Zhongxin is controlled by China
Innovative Capital Management Limited (FR ¥TEEEI & A E IR A R 7)) (“China
Innovative Capital”), as to 95.00%. China Innovative Capital is controlled by
Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng Capital Management Limited (1t R /85 HE AT
2 H R A7) (‘Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng”), as to 99.98%. Beijing Zhonghai
Jiacheng is controlled by Mr. Xie Zhikun as to 99.00%. By virtue of the SFO,
each of Mr. Xie Zhikun, Beijing Zhonghai Jiacheng, China Innovative Capital,
Chongqing Zhongxin, Chongging Zhongxin (LLP) is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Hwabo Trust.

Theses Shares are held by Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited.
Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Natural Seasoning International Limited, which is a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is majority owned by
Lunar Capital Partners IV LP. Lunar Capital Partners IV LP, a Cayman
exempted limited partnership managed by Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP (as
sole general partner), which is managed by LCM-IV General Partner Ltd. (as
sole general partner). By virtue of the SFO, each of LCM- IV General Partner
Ltd., Lunar Capital Partners IV GP, LP, Lunar Capital Partners IV LP and
Natural Seasoning International Limited is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Natural Seasoning International (HK) Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed herein, our Directors are not aware of any person who
will, as at 31 December 2017, have an interest or short position in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to our Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of our Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
was aware that any other persons/entities (other than any Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company, its members of the Group or
associated corporations which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 11.7% (2016: 13.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
Group'’s five largest customers accounted for 40.2% (2016: 50.9%) of the
Group’s total revenue.

In the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for 26.3% (2016: 32.4%) of the Group’s total purchases. The
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 58.4% (2016: 66.1%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
or the Group’s five largest customers.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 606 full-time
employees, as compared to 561 employees as at 31 December 2016. The
Group enters into employment contracts with its employees to cover
matters such as position, term of employment, wage, employee benéfits,
liabilities for breaches and grounds for termination. Remuneration of the
Group’s employees includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and other
employee benefits and are determined with reference to their experiences,
qualifications, competence and general market conditions.

The emoluments payable to the Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service agreements
as approved by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. No Director should determine his or her
own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest
paid individual in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(“MPF Schemes”) registered under the Mandatory Provident Scheme Fund
Ordinance. The contributions represent contributions payable to the MPF
Schemes by the Company in accordance with government regulations.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
retirement benefits schemes based on a certain percentage of their payroll
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
retirement benefits schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

Contributions paid or payable for these retirement benefits schemes for the
year of 2017 are RMB4.2 million (2016: RMB4.3 million). No forfeited
contributions are available to  reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in future years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

3l ()

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, our Group has not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
should be disclosed pursuant to the requirements of chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2017, which did not constitute connected transactions under
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 31 of the financial
statements in this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company places high value on its corporate governance practices and
the Board firmly believes that a good corporate gover nance practices can
improve accountability and transparency for the benefit of the Shareholders
of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Governance Code as its own code to
govern its corporate governance procedures. The Board also reviews and
monitors the practices of the Company from time to time to maintain and
improve a high standard of corporate practice practices.

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 54
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the Governance
Code in the year ended 31 December 2017. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 32 to 54 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the financial statements. All
services provided by the external auditor are required to be approved by
the Audit Committee. To ensure that the policy of restricting the non-audit
work done by the external auditor is strictly adopted by all entities within the
Group, appropriate policies and procedures have been established for
approval of engagement of the Group’s independent external auditor, Ernst
Young, to provide services to the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in the long
term, continuously create value for its employees and customers, and foster
good relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands that
employees are its valuable assets, and the realisation and enhancement of
employees’ values will facilitate the achievement of the Group’s overall
goals. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group provided
generous social security benefits to its employees to motivate them while
heightening their sense of belonging. The Group also understands the
importance of maintaining good relationships with its suppliers and
customers to the overall development of the Group. The Group places
emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and open competition
to foster long-term relationships with quality suppliers on the basis of mutual
trust. To maintain the competitiveness of its brand and products, the Group
abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and commits itself
to consistently provide quality products to establish a reliable service
environment for its customers. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
there was no significant and material dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Honworld Group Limited attaches great importance to fulfilling its
obligations on environmental, social and governance, pursues long-term
sustainable development and devotes itself to building leading cooking wine
brand in China. Meanwhile, as an old firm with more than 100 years of
history, Lao Heng He persists on the ancestral principle of “Perseverance
and Faith” and has been keen on creation while inheriting brewing, so as to
advance towards the next century course.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Active Performance of Environmental, Social and
Governance Responsibilities

While continuing to provide customers with high quality and healthy natural-
brewing cooking wine and other condiment products in different levels, Lao
Heng He also actively assumes its responsibilities for environment, society
and governance. To this end, the Company has established a series of
policies on environment, social and governance taken and implemented
respective measures. During the reporting period in 2017, there was no
violation against laws and regulations related to environment, society and
governance and no material adverse effect on environment and society.

As for the environmental aspect, the Company has not only adopted
effective harmless disposal of the residue of soya, acid-sludge, bean dregs,
vinasse and liquid waste in the process of brewing, but also instilled the
concept of sustainable development into the manufacturing and enterprise
operation to enhance the utilization efficiency of resources and energy while
reducing the emission to the environment. For example, the Company has
recycled and reused the vinegar dregs (the major by-product produced in
brewing vinegar) to make vinegar after steaming, which not only improves
the utilization efficiency of raw material, but also reduces waste emission. In
addition, the Company makes full use of renewable energy and reduce
greenhouse gas emissions.

As for the social aspect, the Company regards food safety as “lifeline” and
sets out comprehensive and strict management standards and procedures
on the selection of raw materials and suppliers, quality control of productive
process, management of package and storage and transportation and
after-sales services. The Company also sets up food safety self-assessment
team to regularly take a comprehensive self-assessment for our food safety.
At the time of ensuring the quality of products and services, the Company
also put effort into protecting intellectual property, preventing corruption,
protecting the rights and interests of employees and supporting social
public welfare undertaking.
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Initiative Disclosure of Environmental, Social and
Governance Information

On the basis of taking responsibilities actively, Lao Heng He also discloses
environmental, social and governance information initiatively. According to
the requirements relating to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report Guideline of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Lao Heng He will
promptly announce its second environmental, social and governance report
which discloses the environmental, social and governance information of
the Company during the reporting period in 2017.

Keeping on paying attention to opinions of interest related parties by the
Company, in preparing the environmental, social and governance report, as
there are no significant changes in the major businesses, there have not
been any material changes in the major issues identified in 2016. However,
we strive to understand the views and expectations of stakeholders at all
levels on Lao Heng He’s response to environmental, social and governance
issues through various forms such as face-to-face communication,
telephone interviews and on-site visits, which provides a strong basis for
the Company to formulate its long-term strategy.

For more information about the environmental, social and governance of
Lao Heng He for the financial year of 2017, please refer to the second
environmental, social and governance report to be published by the
Company. After the publication of the report, you can view or download
from the Company’s official website.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, so far as known to the Directors, there was no non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations which would have a
material impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by the Company or by
the Group after 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2017, it was
approved that Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the international and
PRC auditors of the Company respectively for the year 2017, and the Board
was authorised to determine and approve their remunerations.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

There was no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Weizhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Ernst & Young ZKE TR BB Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIBREEISE Fax {5H:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue sk E2218 ey.com
ﬁ,i Central, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report B RS

To the shareholders of Honworld Group Limited HEENEEERATFLKRE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REISEEFME T ERAT)

OPINION =

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Honworld Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
83 to 156, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETSEEmw

Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEEET T ROMELN

Existence of inventories

FHEFE

The Group has a significant balance of inventories and needs
to maintain its inventories at an appropriate level to meet the
future market or production needs. The inventory balances
represented approximately 35% of the Group’s total assets
and the majority of inventories were base wine amounting to
approximately RMB 934 million. The existence of base wine
could not be easily substantiated via physical observation
since it was massive in quantity and this needed involvement
of laboratory examination to validate its chemical contents.

Therefore, this area was of higher assessed risks of material
misstatement and was identified as a key audit matter.

The related disclosures of inventories are included in note 15.

EEEBAEFEARETREREEKTFNEELRE
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We performed the following audit procedures:

1. Assessing the Group’s internal controls over the
inventories;

2. Observing the Group’s physical stock-counts at the end
of the current reporting period, randomly selecting
certain inventory samples (the “Inventory Samples”)
during the observation, and obtaining the laboratory
examination results of the chemical contents of the
Inventory Samples from an independent third party
examination agency (the “Laboratory Examination
Results”) engaged by us; and

3. Assessing the results regarding the independence and
competence of industry experts from the examination
agency and the research institutions (the “Experts”), and
with the assistance of the Experts assessing the
reasonableness of (i) the input-output ratios of Group’s
base wine with different alcohol levels, which
represented the proportional relations that exist between
input volumes of raw materials and output volumes of
base wine, and (i) the Laboratory Examination Results.

BPIIT T TER RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

35 37 A BB (B

ARETSEEmw

Key audit matter

BMRENER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEETTRUOMESEN

Provisions of inventories

FERE

The Group has a significant inventory balance and need to
maintain majority of its base wine at an appropriate level for a
period over 1 year to meet the future production needs. We
focused on this area because the determination of inventory
provisions involved significant estimation of the net realisable
values (the “NRV”) of the inventories which were influenced
by assumptions concerning future sales and usage and
judgements in determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions against identified surplus or obsolete items.

The related disclosures of inventory provision are included in
note 3 and 15.
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We performed the following audit procedures:

1. Obtaining analysis of the inventory provisions prepared
by management and reviewing the key assumptions
used to determine the NRV of inventories as follows:

(i) comparing the estimates of expected future sales
of inventories to the recent sales prices and sales
rate; and

(ii) comparing the estimates of production usage of
raw materials to the recent production records;
and

2. Recalculating the expected provisions based on the

above key assumptions to assess the mathematical
accuracy of the calculation.

BAIAIT T TR RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

3 37 B R (B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETSEEmw

Key audit matter

BMRENER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEETTRUOMESEN

Deferred tax for withholding taxes

FAHIB AR

The Group’s provision for deferred tax for withholding taxes
arising from the distribution of dividends from the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China was subject to the estimations
of the Group’s future operating results and the judgements
on the timing of payments of the dividends in the future. This
area was identified as a key audit matter as the estimation
process was significantly based on assumptions, which were
affected by projected future market and economic conditions.

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 23.

EEEE SEEEETBEAMAONBARIREREME
ERBEMBAFRVEEFRREIRRY BRBEARK
REFRENGEF RY BRIV RE R HE - dRfEa
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Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
forecast and judgements on the timing of payments of
dividends in the future by obtaining evidence to evaluate the
management’s estimation and judgement, such as historical
accuracy of management’s assumptions, historical sales
growth trend and dividend pay-out ratio.

BB DEREERERRME DRI @
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Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2017




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

35 37 A BB (B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

3 37 B R (B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

3 37 B R (B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Hui Kin Fai Stephen.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

% B 16 i A

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —Z—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®FT T AREFT
REVENUE WA 5 803,141 831,149
Cost of sales $HE A (373,615) (385,453)
Gross profit EF 429,526 445,696
Other income and gains B PN 5 19,755 8,426
Selling and distribution expenses $HE RACIHR X (110,985) (81,225)
Administrative expenses TR (71,906) (83,065)
Other expenses HAX (1,465) (1,271)
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (48,840) (40,606)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX EX5 TR 6 216,085 247,955
Income tax expense FR1SH5 2 10 (29,310) (41,319)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFHE 186,775 206,636
Attributable to: TH AR
Owners of the parent B RBHAEA 186,775 206,636
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERZEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhHERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted AR #E S ERPREETEN  RMB38.4 cents

AR¥3235 AR#38.45

ZEMBEARAR —T—tFFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

f 2 T WL i 3%

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE -—Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 186,775 206,636
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Htnsim & WA
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be RERBPEEHSAEIEERN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hipsr WA (EE)
periods:
Exchange differences: BE 34, 2258
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBHERLZE
foreign operations (13,275) 13,115

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FRHEMLZREUWA,(Ei8)

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (HIBRFiE) (13,275) 13,115
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRGREBRAELE
FOR THE YEAR 173,500 219,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

fon o B 5 IR DL 3

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARBTIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e 13 938,404 810,088
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT b R E ROB 14 53,249 51,035
Other intangible assets HifmAE 414 414
Prepayments for non-current assets SERBEERIER A 390,744 335,408
Time deposits TEHATF R 18 = 26
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEEE 23 2,254 2,666
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,385,065 1,199,637
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories VR 15 1,189,931 1,088,440
Trade receivables FEWE 558 16 129,547 162,471
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE  Ze2k
other receivables E e GRIE 17 191,271 193,386
Time deposits TEHER 18 = 69,370
Pledged deposits [REEEUIES /4 18 76,047 159,014
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 18 443,893 291,815
Total current assets MEEELRE 2,030,689 1,964,496
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B E 508 19 153,539 143,819
Other payables and accruals H R sIE R EETIER 20 85,628 78,510
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 528877 & H i & 5% 21 892,555 777,264
Tax payable FE TR 28,168 34,701
Total current liabilities BB ERE 1,159,890 1,034,294
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 870,799 930,202
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRDER

CURRENT LIABILITIES

2,255,864 2,129,839
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

Sl o S B SIR DL (4E)

31 December 2017 = E—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—EB—tF AN
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PEE AR¥T T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 8 R 17 & E b EK 21 62,254 71,723
Other long term liabilities HEmEHAE 24 137,179 137,333
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTEE E 23 22,592 18,774
Total non-current liabilities B A ELTE 222,025 227,830
Net assets BEFE 2,033,839 1,902,009
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners BATHEEAEGER
of the parent
Share capital R 25 1,767 1,767
Reserves E= 26 2,032,072 1,900,242
Total equity R iasa 2,033,839 1,902,009
Chen Weizhong Sheng Mingjian
PR{E A EREAfE
Director Director
EF =3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

% ME 4 52 B 3%

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —Z—+F+-_A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

[SYNSZ DN 4]
Statutory  Exchange
Share Share Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EE 33

BA  BRHEE  AHEE  EARE  RHEE  KIREE  RENE  ExEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARKTT ARBTR ARRTT ARBTR ARETT ARBTER

(note 26)  (note 26)  (note 26)
(Mzr2e)  (Fiszkee)  (MisE26)

At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—Hf—H 1,584 717,614 (1,000) 7,003 15,150 10,772 672,208 1,423,331
Profit for the year ERFIHE - - - - - - 206,636 206,636
Other comprehensive income  FREMEZAKA
for the year:
Exchange differences related  E/BINER BB
to foreign operations EHER - - - - - 13,115 - 13,115

Total comprehensive income NG AN A B

for the year - - - - - 13,115 206,636 219,751

Final 2015 dividend declared ~ BER-Z— 14

FERE - (45,850) - - - - - (45600)
Issue of shares (note 25) B (M7 25) 183 304,507 - - - - - 304,690
Share issue expenses BB S (H:E25)

(note 25) - (113 - - - - - (113
Transfer from retained profits ~ #5 H{R & FIJE - - - - 4,811 - (4.811) -
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RF

+ZA=1+-H 1,767 976,358 (1,000) 7,003 19,961 23,887 874,033 1,902,009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

22\ RV =
&7 WE #m 5

Year ended 31 December 2017 # &

B % (4)

—tE+- A=t —HIEER

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREE RS
Statutory  Exchange
Share Share Merger Capital surplus fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EE EX
BA  RHBE AHiEE EARE  BHRE  KIRE  REAR  EREE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR AR®BTRT ARMTR ARETR AR®TR AR%TR
(note 26)  (note 26)  (note 26)
(Wif26)  (MfE26)  (M=E26)

976,358

At 1 January 2017 RZT—+F—-A—H
Profit for the year ERFE
Other comprehensive income £ WA A A YA :
for the year:
Exchange differences related  EE5N R A A
to foreign operations EHER
Total comprehensive income NG A N A B

for the year
Final 2016 dividend declared ~ EER—Z—/\4F
RERS
BRARETHE

Transfer from retained profits

(41,670)

At 31 December 2017 R-E

1,767 934,688

*

(1,000)

(1,000

As at 31 December 2017, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated — *

reserves of RMB2,032,072 (2016: RMB1,900,242) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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874,033
186,775

(13,275)

(13275 186,775

(4,301)

7,003* 24,262" 10,612  1,056,507*

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—8"

1,902,009
186,775

(13,275)

173,500

(41,670)

ZERBEREES

EMBRRERANERE FEARE2,032,0727T(=

T—NF : AR%1,900,2427T) ©



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

,»,T»/\iﬁ{rz{fﬁgi'%

Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ - —+F+ - A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T R ARBETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHNRETE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax [ %5 511 R 216,085 247,955
Adjustments for: BT RIEFE
Finance costs A& R AR 7 48,840 40,606
Interest income FB YA 5 (2,212) (1,018)
Depreciation E 13 38,208 32,017
Amortisation of prepaid BaTEN AR E s
land lease payments 14 1,284 1,080
302,205 320,640
Increase in inventories FEEN (101,491) (142,971)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEURE S E R, (15 0) 32,924 (20,512)
Decrease in prepayments, TERFIE ek
deposits and other receivables H e YRk IE 25,052 56,430
Increase in trade payables Jfétfﬁf’f SRIEIE NN 9,720 25,360
Increase/(decrease) in other Hih e kB R EFTIER
payables and accruals #h0,/ Cr ) (4,525) 30,174
Decrease in other long term liabilities Hit RE & &R (154) (172)
Cash generated from operations EXERKENES 263,731 268,949
Interest received B U F & 2,212 1,018
Interest element of finance lease AEAERS AR EHD
rental payments 7 (2,777) (2,265)
PRC tax paid B EFIE (31,613) (39,383)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELEZHNFRERE 231,553 228,319
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHHNRESRE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, WEEYI 2  BUE MR TEE
plant and equipment (153,722) (219,258)
Prepayments for items of property, FERME - BE K&
plant and equipment HETEE A (55,336) (221,915)
Addition to prepaid land lease payments i‘ﬁﬁiiﬁfﬂfnﬂﬁim (3,581) (25,969)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits THEEZUR L (38 hn) 152,363 (225,536)
Net cash flows used in investing activites ~ FAREEEBHFRESRE (60,276) (692,678)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

wAﬁ%fiﬁh)

Year ended 31 December 2017 E T —+F+ - F=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PEE AR®T R ARBETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM METHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT EI1SRUR 25 304,690
Share issue expenses & 8E1TRIZ 25 (113)
New interest-bearing bank and Bt BIRIT R AL E K
other borrowings 1,161,610 1,003,560
Repayment of interest-bearing BETBEITREMER
bank and other borrowings (1,123,410) (778,760)
Increase in long term payables R ZRIE AN = 133,000
Dividends paid BEfE (41,670) (45,650)
Interest paid BT E (47,222) (39,143
Proceeds from finance leases BEHEFTSRIR 102,853 -
Capital element of finance lease rental BEREHESNRNAREIHD
payments (35,231) (20,573)
Secured deposit placed for finance lease  FEEIE A EF AN B EMIER (22,854) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) KA (BR)BEEEN
financing activities FRERE (5,924) 557,011
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReERRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B hNFEEE 165,353 92,652
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRE MRS EEY
beginning of year 291,815 186,048
Effect of foreign exchange rate BRI E TR
changes, net (13,275) 13,115
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRRAECEEY
AT END OF YEAR 18 443,893 291,815
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
December 2012 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year,
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”)
were principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of condiment
products under the brand name of “Lao Heng He” in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Key Shine Global Holdings
Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued the prospectus and
launched a public offering of 125,000,000 shares at an offer price of
HK$7.15 per share. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on 28 January 2014
(the “Listing”).
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EEPB22EZLRAEY (—NAR—FE=R
AR iR E B EREBESFMKLA
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

ARBR—HREERRQF - FR - ARQF
REMBAR (SB[ AEE]) TERPEA
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37 H) Key Shine Global Holdings Limited ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2017 = E—+F+-A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continuesy 1. A @& ¥
As 31 December 2017, the Company had direct and indirect interests NZE—tF+_A=+—H AQRRE
in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability companies WBATTHEEEE NEEEZ  ZEWEB
(or, if registered outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar NEIEEBILEER AT (HEREEBINE
characteristics to a private company incorporated in Hong Kong), the o MBEENESSMAKS 2L E RN FEK
particulars of principal subsidiaries are set out below: HHRE) EETEWNBATEEHY T :
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued/
establishment and registered Percentage of equity
Name place of operations share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMARL, R 2 BR7/
A% REEWH AR AEE ARAREEEEDL TEXH
Direct Indirect
E#% GiE:3
Lao Heng He Group Limited © Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
ZENEREERDFY & 18T REER
Huzhou Chenshi Tian Niang PRC/Mainland China HK$14,250,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited @@ HE /R E N 14,250,000/ 7T products
MNEERBREZBR AR O AR R H
Huzhou Cheng De Trading PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited @0 RE/ BN ARE1,200,000,0007C products
MNKEE S ERRE @0 R
Zhejiang Changxing Sanhetang PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Trading Co., Limited @@ HRE /R E N AR #500,000,0007T products
MIRE=AEZSERAR A0 ARDHE
Zhejiang Changxing Hengze Trading ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Wholesale of condiment
Co., Limited @@ B/ E i AR#150,000,0007¢ products
MIRREEZEE HERRFEO FRm L E
Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited @@ /R E b AR#11,000,0007C condiment products
WM EBRBEEER AR 60 FERHERARR
Huzhou Laohenghe Wine PRC/Mainland China RMB38,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited @@ B/ E i AR 38,000,0007T condiment products
MMEERBEER AR GO EEREERRR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

(@) The financial statements of these subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The statutory financial statements of the entity prepared under IFRSs
were audited by Ermnst & Young, Hong Kong.

(c) The statutory financial statements of these entities prepared under the
People’s Republic of China Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
were audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP).

©)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include
all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the laws of PRC.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

1.

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2017 = E—+F+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REEE 4

94

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. Disclosures of the changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in note 27 to
these financial statements.

Other than as explained above regarding the impact of amendments
to IAS 7, the adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements of the Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that

2.3 B S E1 K4 R BB
5 35 45 2 B

AEBUARNZEWBHRRTEATIER
B M R AR 2 #T AT R AT B B 15 3R

96

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements. ZERI o

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of HERE RS ER KRG AEROT 58
Share-based Payment Transactions' EVEACHEY P E

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with [ty pes il BRI R E 4 5
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' F4F (BRI [REEE R ERERT %

HEEHEIR[2BIA)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' ABERREENEE 2ETA
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative i) iy st BBERENERN TR
Compensation? F9% (854
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Gilis g el REZHABE\Alg A £
and IAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint F105 REBe; HRREHETLER"
Venture* ERIF 285 (1B7IK)
(z2——%)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' ARUBREERE 15  EEAMR
Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Gl g s tesiel| o FRE AR E 155
Contracts with Customers' F155 (BFTA) [EF& M B5E
IFRS 16 Leases? ARG BaREENZ 6% HE?
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BN BREENETS  RBALS
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and AR et elE8s REERFRAEDEN
Joint Ventures? (BEIAK) REER
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property' ER e ERE 405 BERANE
(fBETA)
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and HRE R RERE SER G RBUAE
Advance Consideration' ZEERRERY
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments? HEH SR AR FEREREN T
ZEERBENT
Annual Improvements to Amendments to the following two IFRSs: il g ey ) NG s o
IFRSs 2014-2016 — IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong —E-MER HIE
Cycle Kong Financial Reporting —E-NEREHH — EEBRREERE 15
Standards' FENE BARAE B BHEER
—  IAS 28 Investments in Associates - BB ERE 8 FRE S
and Joint Ventures' RARBERZMRE
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to a number of IFRS3, R ik BB KR ERFE S5 - B
IFRSs 2015-2017 IFRS11, IAS12 and I1AS23? —F-7%%F FHREEHE 1% BB
Cycle ZE-tEEE SHEAZ 125 RERE:
FEN# ERIE 23K B IB(EE]2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, except
IFRS 16 Leases, the Group considers that these new and revised
IFRSs may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

Further information about IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is described below:

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard.

The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 15 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only to
contracts that are not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January
2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not be material. During
2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact
of the adoption of IFRS 15 and did not anticipate a material impact
on revenue from sales of condiments.

EEMBERR AT
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EAMERREMNBEBRE
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease
term and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to
make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can
choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt IFRS
16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of IFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose to
take advantage of the practical expedients available and which
transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note
29 to the financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately HK$6,368,000.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may
need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the amount of
new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-
value assets and short term leases, other practical expedients and
reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made as at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHHEREBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties EER

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT AL #3518 A B AR £ B A

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (a) MWANTALTHZALREZERNZ
and that person AL

()  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  EHlkERERIAER

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEATEN %

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) RALEBEXALEEZSRFNFEE
Group or of a parent of the Group; EEEKE

or B4
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) FRALAFE TIEMGHNEE :
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZELEASEBR-—SEHOK
group; EPNCIIE

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (ii) ERAS—ER(XE—EENE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of naEl - MBARKRARMB AR
the other entity); Mt E N Rk BB

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBUEAEERR-SF=7H
third party; aEhE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy BRERBF-FBEMNAED
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MBE-—BERAEZE=ZHEE

o) dlNCIl

(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZEEALSERHAASEEH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity ENEEDES MFRR AR
related to the Group; #mRFIETEl

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) FZEEEH@QIBIIA TSI
identified in (a); and BEHl &

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over i) @O)EMINATHZERBEESE
the entity or is a member of the key management Kﬂ?@jjdzi%&ﬁﬁ%(dﬁi;ﬁ%%ﬁ@
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). NENHFTEEEERE

(vil)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) ZEBIALEBEMAZKE M
provides key management personnel services to the AEBESAEE 2 FRARIREE
Group or to the parent of the Group. BERABRTS ©
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Machinery and equipment* 5% to 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33'/3%
Motor vehicles 20%

* Included in the machinery and equipment are earthen jars, for which the
estimated useful lives are 20 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHHEREBEw

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets
held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease
payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHHEREBEw

104

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets RENEMESREE
Initial recognition and measurement X ERREE

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHHEREBEw
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and other
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and financial liabilities
included in other long term liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHHEREBEw
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position,

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Employee retirement benefits

According to the rules and regulations of the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to contribute to a
state-sponsored retirement plan for all its PRC employees at certain
percentages of the basic salaries predetermined by the local
governments. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire retirement benefit obligations payable to retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual retirement
benefit payments or other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.

The contributions are recognised as expenses when the Company
consumes the economic benefit arising from service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.
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ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Employee retirement benefits (Continued) EERMKER (80
Early retirement and retirement benefits IERRIKRENKEF

During the fiscal 2005 restructuring, the Group undertook the
expense related to both the retirement and the early retirement
schemes for the medical and social welfare of those early retired and
retired employees as of 30 June 2005. The Group recognised the
relevant estimated liabilities as well as charges to the statement of
profit or loss once the Group undertook the obligations. These
benefits are unfunded.

Where these schemes fall due more than 12 months after the date of
the financial statements, they shall be discounted using the
appropriate discount rate, and carried at discounted amounts as
liabilities. The discount rate is determined using the yield rate of
government bonds with similar terms at the date of the financial
statements.

Actuarial gains or losses include the experience adjustment (the
impact of difference between the previous actuarial assumption and
actual results) and the impact of changes on actuarial assumption.
The actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income when incurred and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

Interest expense is charged to the statement of profit or loss and is
derived from the discount rate determined at the commencement of
the retirement scheme within an accounting period and the early
retirement scheme multiplying with the average present value over
the entire terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Company for
the purpose of aligning with the presentation currency of the Group.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG POLICI ES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Tax provision

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are made
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation and
practices.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for income tax and
withholding tax that would not be payable on certain undistributed
earnings of the subsidiaries in Mainland China if the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences in
relation to the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China can be controlled and such temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. For those undistributed earnings of
the subsidiaries in Mainland China that are considered to be
repatriated and distributed by way of dividends, the related deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

(a) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the repair and maintenance of the asset, and
legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances. The carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 13.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment losses of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability, the aged analysis of
trade and other receivables and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made for
those identified obsolete and slow-moving inventories and
inventories with a carrying amount higher than net realisable
value. The assessment of the provision required involves
management’s judgement and estimates on which are
influenced by assumptions concerning future sales and usage
and judgements in determining the appropriate level of
inventory provisions against identified surplus or obsolete
items. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will have
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the write-
down/write-back of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d)

Early retirement and retirement benefits

The Group has recognised the early retirement and retirement
benefits as a liability. The initial recognition of early retirement
and retirement benefits is measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the benefits for early-retired and
retired employees. When the Group determines the best
estimate, it takes into account headcount changes of early-
retired and retired employees, effect on future expenditure
arising from inflation of prices and other factors. When selecting
a proper discount rate, the Group takes into account the
average period of future payment for early retirement and
retirement benefits and other factors. The difference between
the actuarial assumptions and actual results will have an impact
on the relevant accounting estimation. Although management
considered that the above assumptions are reasonable, any
changes in assumptions may affect the amount of provision for
early retirement and retirement benefits. The assumptions that
the Group used in measuring the early retirement and
retirement benefits are disclosed in note 24.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
condiment products. For management purposes, the Group operates
in one business unit and has one reportable operating segment as
follows:

° The food segment that manufactures and sells condiment
products.

As all of the Group’s revenue is derived from sales of its products to
the customers in the PRC and all of the Group’s identifiable non-
current assets are located in the PRC, no geographical information as
required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

3.

EEMBERR AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

E?J%%lﬁi’%l‘fﬁi(,%ié)

7 EE TR TNE

31 December 2017 — =&

EESHHE G @®

fAEr T REEREZ @)
(d) BEERIKREIKEF

REED FRFP RN SRR EIERE
AfE - BRPBKRRBENEVILHER
BIZHRRERRRMRKEELEENMT
WA M REGEE - AEEEEE
BEMmETH - A%J@TEELW& ~E
,Eiﬂ’]/\%(“ﬂi S IR R R B S Y
ZRAEMAZR - EEREENMRE
AREEEERRRIMRERRK
WZE?‘Jmii’]HﬁFEJ&E@I% BE
BREHERER AN EZESHRES
FHEETENEE - REBTEBEERA LM
REEE - BRENEMESTAER
ZRBERRMBRRENOBESRE - K
SR ERF RN EBEREFFEEA
BRI FR AP 52 24 ©

AEETENEIARREERBEER -
REBME  AEENE - ¥BBELES -

BEBE— AR 2mEEnsmT
° Eﬁ’ E‘Bﬂié&fﬁﬁcﬂ%uu °

MR AREZFRABREARFEOTS
HEEER AAKEERHAUIMERDE
EBMNPE - R ERIEER RS %
RIE8SRAE & DAL 25 I E R -

T FFER

117



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4, BFEFTHER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers EBEFEEFMNER
Revenue derived from sales to individual customers amounting to 10 TR IS BRI AN E BB A 10% 3k A
percent or more of the Group’s revenue for the reporting period is set ERERIEFAEERMEERA

out in the following table:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Customer X ZEX 115,672
Customer Y =EY 105,591
Customer Z ZFEZ 83,442
304,705
* Revenue from the customer did not exceed 10 percent of the * AREBREAREFILA10% A THE
Group’s revenue for the reporting period. PErESU A o
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA - A RKEHE
GAINS
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WABEHBREERELESIITHNENELE
allowances for returns and trade discounts. M ERE -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as REBWA ~ HWA KW T -
follows:
2017 2016
—E=—+t#F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFT
Revenue PN
Sale of goods HEEM 803,141 831,149
Other income and gains Hib A Rk
Subsidy received [BEEE 7,408
Interest income FEWA 1,018
Foreign exchange gain, net PE 5 2 F 7R -
Others Hih -
8,426
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-l
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BR¥ATFIE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: RNEEGRIBIAE&EMNE &3
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT ARBT T ARBET T
Costs of inventories sold EHFEKRAR 373,615 385,453
Depreciation e 13 38,208 32,017
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BETES T EFE
payments 14 1,284 1,080
Minimum lease payments under operating &4 E1E B BEKE &
leases regarding plant and machinery e AR EKIE 2,358 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1= ELR BN 1,958 2,012
Employee benefit expenses EERAMBEX
(excluding directors’ remuneration): (TBEEESHE)
— Wages and salaries - TIEEF® 27,479
— Pension scheme contributions — RIKEHEIER 4,313
31,792
Research and development costs Tff 7T 2 A B Bl AR 51,592
Donations B3 62
Foreign exchange differences, net EHZRFE -
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MEKAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BRER A DT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ET T
Interest on bank loans IRITEFRF B 38,341
Interest on finance leases BMEMHER S 2,265
40,606
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBEITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BIBERAES EmAM( ETRAD - &
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock R ENMEFIEE 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ () ()& AF]
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (BREBEEEMNEERROE _BEENFE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EERERTHRABEHHMOT :
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Fees biakery 370
Other emoluments: Hibpiie -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYH G 396

Performance related bonuses FIRMABEEA 100

Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEI R 54

550

920
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERRETHAEZHE
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION ()
(Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYHHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FABNBENTEETNRSOT ¢

the year were as follows:

2017 2016
S P
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Mr. Lei Jiasu* ERERS A 80

Mr. Ma Chaosong* B A 80

Mr. Shen Zhenchang IR E S 60

Mr. Sun Jiong** R E -

Mr. Ng Wing Fai** R -

220

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RoE—+FM T — NE R EFER

non-executive directors during the years 2017 and 2016. B IERITEENEMES -

* Mr. Lei Jiasu and Mr. Ma Chaosong resigned as * EXREEELEHENEANR -
independent non-executive directors of the Group on 29 —+E XAt EBEAE
June 2017. BN IFITES -

- Mr. Ng Wing Fai and Mr. Sun Jiong were appointed as o REEEAREBLEER_-Z
independent non-executive directors of the Group on 29 —+EXA-tTHLBEZFEAKX
June 2017. KB IFFRITES -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBEITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION ()
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director (b) HITES  FHATESERES
and the chief executive ITHAE
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
Fc =133 3] Eifke

g BURE  HERNRA SRR e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR

2017 “E-iF
Executive directors: HiITESE
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BRELE
Mr. Wang Chao FTHEE
Non-executive directors: HHTEE -
Ms. Qian Yinglan** BRELT
Mr. Sun Qingdong® BHRFE A
Chief executive: REITBAL -
Mr. Chen Weizhong REBRLE
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERBREITHAEZHME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (&)
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director (b) HITES  FHATESERES
and the chief executive (Continued) THBAE @)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2R 3R Rik®

ik ENfls R FHBIR et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETRH

2016 ZE-RE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Sheng Mingjian BT E - 120 50 13 183
Mr. Wang Chao FlEsE - 9 50 13 159
- 216 100 26 342
Non-executive directors: FHTEE :
Mr. Zhang Bihong REALE 100 - - 15 115
Mr. Sun Qingdong R EE 50 - - - 50
150 - - 15 165
Chief executive: REITBAL -
Mr. Chen Weizhong REREAE - 180 - 13 193
150 396 100 54 700
* Mr. Sun Qingdong resigned as a non-executive director of the * FERREER-_ZSE—+FAB+=H
Group on 12 September 2017. BEAKEFERNTES -
* Ms. Qian Yinglan was appointed as a non-executive director of o BRRZITR_Z—+FhA+=H
the Group on 12 September 2017. BEERAEEIFNTES -
There was no arrangement under which executive directors R-ZE—tFM T NFAREHTT
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years EEREXRERETAHNSHOLHE -

2017 and 2016.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AEBREHESR

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three FR A GoHRBRERE=-"REx=(_2
directors (2016: three), details of whose remuneration are set out in —NF =) ENeSEEN E XIS -
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2016: AATREIFEESENIEERITHAB ZEHBN
two) highest paid employees who is neither a director nor chief Z(CE—RNF: MBS EENHESE
executive of the Company are as follows: B

2017 2016

—E2—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDAN = 283
Performance related bonuses FIRMBEAREA -
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 25
308
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid MENFUTHENIEESERIIEETSTTHA
employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as EMNESHEEAZNT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF

Nil to RMB1,000,000 & AK%1,000,0007T - 2
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group was not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands.

The corporate income tax of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China has been provided at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on
the taxable profits, based on the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the approval from the National Office of Leading Group
for Administration of Hi-tech Enterprise Recognition, Huzhou
Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited and Huzhou Laohenghe Wine Co.,
Limited, both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
granted the “New and Advanced Technology Enterprise” status and
are entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for the three
consecutive years commencing from 2016.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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10. FRB B

AEBARANEEKE R BIEREEE
HBDERRTELRRBONE  HEEE
EHMFTEN - RIEFRSHENRAIER -
AEBBEHNASESAER

AEBEFBEAMEBNEEMSHREER
RITER  RBEREIIZHE25% (ZF—X
F 0 25%) HRERBAEIEL A -

BEEESHIRMEEREBTETIEESE /)
HEAZEBELRI S N EENESEER
NEIRHMNEBMBEZEER AT (MEHG AR
NEME2EMBAG) EE S EMmEE]
B WA BT —AFREE-FAFE=E
2 15% HIBEERLE o

2017 2016

S P
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRE  ARETR

Current — PRC BNER—

Charge for the year FEAZH 37,081
Deferred (note 23) IERE (MI5E23) 4,238
Total tax charge for the year FARBZ LB 41,319

EEMBERR AT

T FFER
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRE BB XX @)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before HHRAARAB RIS B AT e A =8
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction where most of the SETEMERAAE NGB R FEE BT ET R
Company’s subsidiaries are located to the tax expense at the YEIREBRHRAENHISHA S EBELT ¢

effective tax rate is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR® T % ARETIT %

Profit before tax R B B 216,085 247,955
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEMETENHIE 54,021 4 61,989 25.0

Lower tax rate enacted It 77 B 2B 4 B B R R

by the local authority (22,134) 21,612 8.7)

Effect of withholding tax at 10% RN 55 [ R B A i B S 1 )
on the distributable profits of the AERFE10%EE
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland TEF AR 2

China 3,818 . 4,013 1.7
Tax incentive on eligible expenditures & & 1% 5 St K T S B = (6,895) (3,132) (1.3
Expenses not deductible for tax B EA R AR 500 I 61 -
Tax charge at the Group’s BEASEEERHENELN

effective rate WS H 41,319 16.7
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. R E
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBETTT
Proposed final — RMB6.5 cents BEAM— RIS
(2016: RMB7.2 cents) per ordinary share AR (ZZ—R%F:
AREBT729) 41,670

12

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The 2016 proposed final dividends of RMB41,670,000 were
approved by Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting
on 31 May 2017 and were subsequently distributed in July 2017.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
578,750,000 (2016: 538,041,096) in issue during the year.

12.

REFREZRPLBAFARRRRRNERE
RERIAF ARG FHERTAMER -

ZE-RFEZARARKREARK 41,670,000
TOEARAFRRERN-ZE—+FRA=1—
BEMARRBFRE LHE - WHEERZ
Tt FAIRE -

SRAREBRANE ARG
BRER

BRERBFSCHENTEDERERARL R
EEFEABLRFEFANFBRFEFRNERTER
% hn#E S £ #8578,750,000 A% ( —F — /N 4 ¢
538,041,096 %)

2017 2016
e
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BARIEBEERTAA
holders of the parent (RMB’000) JEMFE(ARET T 186,775 206,636
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT AR N a8
shares in issue (in thousands) (Fr%) 578,750 538,041
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary BRARIEBERFEEA
equity holders of the parent FE1E AR A A
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — EANEE(ARE) 32.3 cents 38.4 cents

HRBE_T—tFR-_F-XR"EF+-A
=t HUEFELEEERBEMEND %
TERK  MAKEYERBEMEAHF
B2 EREARNSREEHFE -

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potential dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - ERXRE

Machinery Furniture

and and Motor  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures vehicles improvements  in progress Total
BT HBERRE GARRE RE HENERE ERIR o

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR ARWTR ARETR

31 December 2017 “E-tF+ZA=1+-H

At 1 January 2017; RZT—+5-f-R:
Cost WA 463,118 214,005 4977 15,990 195,842 896,063
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (45,965) (33,582) (1,630) (3,163) - (85,975)
Net carrying amount BEEE 417,153 180,423 3,347 12,827 195,842 810,088

At 1 January 2017, net of RZE—tE-R-H"

accumulated depreciation MR 2HHE 417,153 180,423 12,827 195,842 810,088
Additions NE 95 11,688 - 153,891 166,524
Depreciation provided FRNERE

during the year (21,780) (14,414) (1,359) - (38,208)
Transfers b 48,095 3419 - (51,514) -

At 31 December 2017, netof ~ RZE—+4F
accumulated depreciation +-A=+-8"

MR 2EIE 181,116 298,219 938,404
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+F
T-A=+-8:
Cost KA 511,308 229,112 5815 2,143 15,990 208219 1,062,587
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (67,745) (47,996) (2,084) (1,836) (4,522) - (124,183)
Net carrying amount FEFE 443,563 181,116 3,731 307 11,468 298,219 938,404
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERZHE @

(Continued)

Machinery Fumniture
and and Motor Leasehold ~ Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles improvements  in progress Total
BFY HEREE GAREE RE HEMERE  ERIR @it

RMBOOO ~ RVMBOO0 ~ RVMBOOO  RVMB(OOO  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O0D
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR

31 December 2016 —E-"E+-A=1+-H

At 1 January 2016: RZZ—"F-A-RH:
Cost A 316,171 199,127 4,558 2,081 15,990 145,587 683,514
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (29,798) (19,742) (1,179 (1435) (1,804) - (53,958)
Net carrying amount REEE 286,373 179,385 3,379 646 14,186 145,587 629,556

At 1 January 2016, net of RZE-~F5-A-H"

accumulated depreciation B EHITE 286,373 179,385 3,379 646 14,186 145,587 629,556
Additions NE 4,017 14,437 419 50 - 193,626 212,549
Depreciation provided FRRERE

during the year (16,167) (13,840) (451) (200) (1,359) - (32,017)
Transfers b 142,930 441 - - - (143,371) -

At 31 December 2016, netof ~ R-E—7F
accumulated depreciation +-A=+-8"

ABRRTE 417,153 180,423 8,347 496 12,827 195,842 810,088
At 31 December 2016; RZE—R%E
+ZA=+-R:
Cost KA 463,118 214,005 4977 2,131 15,990 195,842 896,063
Accumulated depreciation ZiTiTE (45,965) (33,582) (1,630) (1,635) (3,163) - (85,975)
Net carrying amount FEFE 417,153 180,423 3,347 496 12,827 195,842 810,088
At 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s buildings and RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H x&FEH
machinery and equipment with an aggregate net carrying amount of BREFEA XN AR 141,180,000 T(=F
approximately RMB141,180,000 (2016: RMB97,201,000) were — N AR 97,201,000 7T ) BUHEF FOME 23
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 21(b)). NEE  EAAREEMERRITERNER

(MEE21(0)) °

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s machinery and equipment and RZEFE—+tF+ZA=+—H x5ERE
construction in progress with a net carrying amount of MEHEREREFERARE 117,164,000
RMB117,164,000 (2016: RMB50,487,000) were held under finance TT(ZZF—RF : AR®50,487,0007T) &) #
leases. BEREBEMTRELIRE -
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. A LA ETIE

2017 2016

—ZE—tHF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B/EmE 52,222 27,333

Additions during the year NERNRE 3,581 25,969

Amortised during the year RE Y (1,284) (1,080)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HKNEEE 54,519 52,222

Less: Current portion included in W RPATENFIE - e Rk

prepayments, deposits and Hib WA RBE D

other receivables (1,270) (1,187)

Non-current portion IERBNE D 53,249 51,035

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under a AELHIRPEAN - WRERBHEOE
long term lease. e

R-E—tF+-_A=1+—8 AE=EEM
BRE 4B X A AR 34,800,000 70 (ZZE—7X
0 AR#40,350,0007T) MAAE L1 - 1EA
REBFRERBITEROER (HIEE21(0)) ©

Leasehold land of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB34,800,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB40,350,000) has been pledged to secure bank loans granted to
the Group (note 21(b)).
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15.

16.
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31 December 2017 —E—+&+-HA=+—H

INVENTORIES 15. &
Raw materials RA#

Work in progress R

Finished goods X 6B

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB803,488,000 (2016: RMB525,343,000) were pledged
to secure bank loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in note
21(b) to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB 934,093,000 (2016: RMB 916,910,000) were base
wine.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—+tF TE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

14,079 11,894
1,142,158 1,049,493
33,694 27,058

1,189,931 1,088,440

R-ZB—tF+-_A=+—0 ~"EEEA

BREEAA
AR ¥ 525,

R#803,488,0007C( —F—/ 4 ¢
343,000 MFE ' IEALREH

PR IRTTERAER - E— FFBHNY

TR M ot

21(b) °

R-B—tF+-_A=+—R AEEEE
BERARBI34,093,000T(=F—RF: A

R 916,91

16. EWE

Trade receivables FEWE 5078

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally one to six months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

ZAN S
=

=3
= ®

E=
Hiim

0,00070) FEAEE -
2 FIE
2017 2016
B4 —E—XF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

.!!I 162,471

FENESEFAEER S RE -
R—ERMEA -

7% 85 [ B 7 5 10 AR UK 2 ) R R TR A AR

EE  ma
RWE S5

EEMBERR AT

HAAEER TN = AR B IR B T AT -
IETDﬂ»EO

T LEER
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at the end

16. B E 5 FKIE @)

AEERBERRERE S FHRREZEH

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BERER DT T
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Within 1 month 118 A AR 60,548 119,143
1 to 3 months 12318 A 51,936 41,957
3 to 6 months 3&61EA 16,279 498
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 617 459
Over 1 year 1EM E 167 414

129,547 162,471

BRI RAAFEITRLSERENERES
IR ER MR RE DT -

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the credit
terms, that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired, is as follows:

2017 2016
S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 3 months past due

3 to 6 months
6 months to 1 year
Over 1 year

BR i E B 7R R (E
EH A B {E A
3Z=61EA
SEEES S
155 E

112,484
16,279
207
419
158

129,547

The trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 16. BEIWE S R Em)
The trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a EEHEYERENERE SHIBEEZLR
number of customers that have a good track record with the Group. FPER HREANRNEBRHNNRGLERLF - R
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no BUARER BESRAECEEXTESK
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as N BRZESDE A E2HUE - B it
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the BEGFNEEREEREREG AEELE
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not MEZEEHRE AT MER R At =
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. EEEFmER -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables with a RZE—ARF+_A=+—H KEFEIRA
carrying amount of RMB23,100,000 were pledged to secure the BRTE 1B B A R % 23,100,000 7T K JE W & 5 3
bank Loans granted to the Group, as further detailed in note 21(b) to B EAKRNEBMERBRITERNER &
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2017, no trade — S HBEHRUBERERMT210) e R
receivables were pledged to secure bank Loans granted to the —+tF+-_A=+—8 AEBETEEZHT
Group. FENE 5 RIBIERPTERRITE R ER -
17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 17. A RE - RERHMEY
OTHER RECEIVABLES Hig
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

Prepayments TR RIA 49,685 76,684
Deposits and other receivables Re R H W IE 141,586 116,702
191,271 193,386
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial tMEEMESSRSNRE - &S S
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which RbE B N T B B 4O S0 AR M FE U EE o

there was no recent history of default.
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. IE%EZEE%%F%&EHHT?

TIME DEPOSITS

EA

Cash and bank balances He MIRTTH S
Time deposits TE BT R
Less: L

Pledged for bank loans (note 21(b))
Non-pledged time deposits with original

IR AEERERTT B K (M 3E21(0)
RS R = B A 12 22

maturity of over three months when I BE R
acquired
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY
Denominated in RMB IAREEEHE
Denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) LA TT OB IT) 5HE
Denominated in USD AETTEHE
Cash and cash equivalents BekREeEEY

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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2017
S
RMB’000
AR®T 5

443,893
76,047

519,940

(76,047)

443,893

442,882
916
95

443,893

RITASRBESARITES
E)ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁw B ° BRITH ﬁ%&
TR SR BN EEE

2016
—E-RF
RMB’000
ARBEFTT

291,815
228,410

520,225

(159,014)

(69,396)

291,815

290,396
1,212
207

291,815

ARBTeEE R LMK EMEY - A - RiE
BRI R (A
FEEIRRE)  ARE S BERELLINE
EBORITEARBLBKEMME

HIE - EERAT

*‘J—v—u rrE’j/?

HEREF

EERTT o
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19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. BB 5 RE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the NEREBARIENE S IBIREZE M MRS
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DT
2017 2016
—®—tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Within 3 months 3EAMUA 72,567 95,330
3 to 6 months 3&61EA 56,730 25,599
Over 6 months 61E A LA £ 24,242 22,890
153,539 143,819
Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are REERNESRBEIHE  —RAR—Z
normally settled on terms of one to six months. The carrying amounts NMEARNES - BN ESHIBANREEER
of the trade payables approximate to their fair values. NEERSE ©
Ed =
20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS  20. Hft B FRER BT E
2017 2016
—e-tF ST
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Advances from customers TEUR AR X 14,173
Other payables HE Mg RIE 48,610
Accruals FEETIEE 15,727

78,510
All these balances are non-interest-bearing and other payables have FRE ZEHEMI PR - EAERFIE T
an average term of three months. R A=A -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

OTHER BORROWINGS

Current
Bank loans — secured®

Finance lease payables®

(note 22)

Non-current
Bank loans — secured®

Finance lease payables®

(note 22)

Total

Analysed into:

Bank loans repayable:

Within one year
In the second year

Finance lease payables:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third year

Total

(o)

(o)

W%

/ Ra~E

RITER—

AR EO

ENRARERIEY
(FFsE22)

FEENER
RITE R — A A A

FENRERERE
(HizE22)

e EMENE
R—FR
E-ER
SZER

= 4= £k
21. FFERITREMMER
2017 2016
—g—t% T-rE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB "000
BERAE (%) T AR¥TR BEEME%) HE ARETT
4.35-5.70 2018 PGS 3.92-5.70 2017 754,560
—E-N\EF —tF
4.79-5.99 2018 39,795 5.99 2017 22,704
—E-N\F —E—F
892,555 777,264
4.32 2018 60,000
— N\
5.99 2018 11,723
—E-N\F
62,254 71,723
954,809 848,987
852,760 754,560
- 60,000
852,760 814,560
39,795 22,704
34,292 11,723
27,962 -
102,049 34,427
954,809 848,987
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
RMB853,760,000 (2016: RMB882,560,000), of which
RMB852,760,000 (2016: RMB814,560,000) had been utilised.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were
pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank loans and
other finance leases granted to the Group.

The carrying values of these assets are:

bt 765 e % Bt s (%)

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

1. TERITREMER@®

BaE

@ R-E—+F+-_A=+—08 KEHRT
R E R B AR 853,760,000 70 (=& — 7%
£ AR#882,560,0007T) 0 Eh AR
852,760,000 T( — & — N F: AR ¥
814,560,0007T) B8 °

b) RIMEHR  AEEHETEERR TR
NEMET - (ERANEEMERIRITERL

Property, plant, and equipment M - BB KR
Leasehold land HE i
Inventories 55

Trade receivables FEWE 538
Pledged deposits BHEBER

HAbRATBE DR -
HEAEOBEER -
2017 2016
—e—tE  -TxF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi ARBFR  ARMTR
13 141,180 97,201
14 34,800 40,350
15 803,488 525,343
16 = 23,100
18 76,047 169,014

1,055,515 845,008

All the Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in RMB.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

REERBRITMEMEFIGAAREE -
AEERITREMERNRAEREAFE
GEE=I

ZEMBEARLAR —T—tFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2017 = E—+F+-A=+—H

22. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 22. EHERNRIA

138

The Group leased certain of its machinery and equipment in 2015
and 2017 and these leases are classified as finance leases with
remaining lease terms from 1 year to 3 years (2016: 2 years) as at 31
December 2017. According to the sale and leaseback agreements, if
no default occurs during the lease term, the ownership of the plant
and machinery shall be automatically transferred to the lessee at a
price of RMB1,000 or RMB100.

Below table represents the loans borrowed by way of the sale and
leaseback arrangements as at 31 December 2017:

AEBR-_Z—RAFA_FT—+HFHEET
BEFEE R —+F+=-A=+—8"
HWERESEARERE NN T—
FEZF(ZT—RF  MF) - BREEEH
Bl WRHBRREELY  AIBE &K
RZHEHEGAARE,0007T3 AR 100
TREREESEBREAMA -

TERERBRR -_ZF—tF+_A=1T—HAUE
BHERZHRENERK -

Effective
interest rate
Date of incurrence Principal amount (%) Maturity Guarantee deposit
BIRFI=
BEHRS PN (%) ZIE A RES
2015/12/29 RMB23,650,000 5.99% 2018/12/29* RMB3,135,000
“E-RF+=ZA=thH AR 23,650,000 7T 5.99% —Z-NF+ZA=t+AnB"* AR¥ 3,135,000 T
2015/12/29 RMB23,650,000 5.99% 2018/12/29 RMB2,365,000
“E-RF+=ZA=thH AR 23,650,000 7T 5.99% —E-N\F+=ZA=+hH AR ¥ 2,365,000 T
2017/07/19 RMB32,100,000 4.79% 2020/07/19 RMB7,130,000
ZE—+ELATNA AR 32,100,000 7T 4.79% ZZ_ZELATNH AR#7,130,0007C
2017/09/13 RMB43,461,000 4.79% 2020/09/13 RMB9,662,000
—T—+tFNA+=H AR 43,461,000 T 4.79% —E-ZEFNAT=A AR#9,662,000 7T
2017/11/06 RMB27,292,000 4.79% 2020/11/06 RMB6,062,000
—E—tF+—HARH AR 27,292,000 7T 4.79% —E-ZF+—AKH AR¥6,062,000 T
* The Group settled the loans in November 2017 and the arrangement * AEBER -_Z—+tF+—ABEER &

terminated accordingly.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s machinery and equipment
and construction in progress with a net carrying amount of
RMB117,164,000 (2016: RMB50,487,000) were held under finance
leases.

Honworld Group Limited Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

22_ FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continues)  22. Rl & A & FE{T 2 1H @)

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H REREH
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: ENRARFEEETBEABLEREBENT -
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum  minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
REHEE KEHE REHEHE KEHEE

MR FIE  RERE  NERE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—B—tF —FRF ZB-tF —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR¥BTRT ARBTT

Amounts payable: FERTRUR -
Within one year R—ER 22,704
In the second year F-FERN 11,723
In the third year E=FR -
Total minimum finance lease HIERERERIARE
payments 108,926 36,517 102,049 34,427
Future finance charges HEERESZ S (6,877) (2,090)
Total net finance lease payables BVE M E R IR F AR 102,049

Portion classified as current liabilities 5385 R B & EZH
(note 21) (FzE21) (39,795)

Non-current portion (note 21) ERBNE S (FHFE21) 62,254 11,723

ZIENEEERAT —T—+FFRH 139



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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23. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

23. EAEFIE
RIETTEABREERNFRNEEHINT :

140

are as follows:

Accruals Withholding
Unrealised and other tax on
profit/  deductible distributable
(loss) on  temporary dividends
inventories differences (Note a) Total
EERER BEASIK
RERFE HMEWEN RENEDH
AW (FE) HEEES GET) @st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFLT ARETFT AREFTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—~F—HF—H 988 1,903 (14,761) (11,870
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRMBHERTA (R) 6
to the statement of profit or loss ERERIE (M 10)
during the year (note 10) (623) 398 (4,013) (4,238)
Net deferred tax liabilities as RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H
at 31 December 2016 and kZZT—+F—A—HB®
1 January 2017 RERIEE BEHE 365 2,301 (18,774) (16,108)
Deferred tax charged FARNBRERNGRE
to the statement of profit or loss ERERTE (M3E10)
during the year(note 10) (89) (323) (3,818) (4,230)
Net deferred tax liabilities RZE—+F+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2017 HEEHIBE EFE 276 1,978 (22,592) (20,338)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
liabilities of RMB90,367,000 (31 December 2016: RMB75,097,000) in
respect of temporary differences relating to the unremitted profits of
subsidiaries amounting to RMB903,673,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB750,970,000), that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

bt 765 e % Bt s (%)

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

23. IEEFLIE (@)

Mitfa: BIBFREAREMBECEMEH L RF
B S K AN IR B R MR IME B A
FIERMAREBHMN10%EN - GRS
FTE_TZNF-A—HBEEN BEA
N-ZZLF+-_A=+—HENETN -
fist 1 B P i R 3R HNE A & BT B A9 RAHE R
JLMﬁfﬁ RBIFTEE = A RIEM TN

cHAKEME HAMNEA10% - B
% $%@€§&%%¢@@%&¢%&
EHMBRARBE _ZETN\F—A—HEESE
&R BT A% B B AR -

RZBE—+F+-_A=+—8 BHRAEA
E&ﬂ%%%%@ﬁ%%%ﬂ%~ﬂ%%
FERARATEER Al BAR K DR - MALE
I B h 5 IRIR B ﬂﬂ%?iﬁ@%%@i
 FE B A R #908,673,000T( = F
—XNE+-_A=+—B: ARK
750,970,000 7T ) B9 T B 14 22 50 #E SR IE ST
BB & ARE90,367,0007C( — & — N 4F
+=—A=+—H: AR¥75,097,0007C) °

RAEINR BETEERBEEERAED
R BARRER T EI - AT RAEE IR
FETR IR BRI T5 SRS R PRIE D AT

MizEb :

2017 2016
—Z—tHF —~E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the é‘ FA TR RIERA

consolidated statement financial position IEERIIEE =R E 2,254 2,666

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RER A MISAR R R FER A
consolidated statement financial position EERIEE EFE (22,592) (18,774)
(20,338) (16,108)

ZEMBEARAR —T—tFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2017 = E—+F+-A=+—H

24. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

24 HittREAEE

Other long term payables
Special payables

Hits R EE IR
JE I HIA R

2017 2016

S

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARMTR  ARNTE
(a) 133,000 133,000
(o) 4,179 4,333
137,179 137,333

On 6 May 2016, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
Huzhou Chen Shi Tian Niang Management Consulting Co., Ltd (the
“Huzhou Chenshi”) and Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited
(“Huzhou Laohenghe”, which is also the wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huzhou Chenshi) entered into an investment agreement with China
Development Fund Co., Ltd (“CD Fund”) (BIFAZEE S ERAR]) (the
“Investment Agreement”). Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, CD
Fund agreed to subscribe for a 3.5% equity interest in Huzhou
Laohenghe at a total cash consideration of RMB133 million (the “Capital
Investment”) and Huzhou Laohenghe shall pay CD Fund fixed annual
return equal to 1.2% of the Capital Investment from the date of the
agreement. In addition, Huzhou Chenshi has contractual obligation to
repurchase the entire equity interest in Huzhou Laohenghe held by CD
Fund within 8 years according to the repayment schedule under the
Investment Agreement. Further details of the Investment Agreement
have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 9
May 2016 and 29 June 2016, respectively.

As Huzhou Chenshi does not have the unconditional right to avoid
delivering cash to CD Fund pursuant to the Investment Agreement, the
Capital Investment of RMB133 million was recorded as a financial
liability.

The balance of other long term payables was analysed as follows:

RZZE—RFRAAXRE  ARAMEEEN
BARMMNRRRBERZAEGRAE
MEREC]) Bos & B i E A R~ A (M
ZEM] - TRBMREN2ERERR) M
BHEREZSBERAR(ERERES A
EEHE(DEERED - REBETEWZ
FREREASABEAARKIBZAETHR
SRAERIRMNZBME T 3.5% Btk ([ &
AEALD - mMZENE S Z B T
BEFRNEHRERESIMNBEENRERARA
1.2% B EE B35 o b5 - N R AR 4
B ARBEIEBROERFRRN/\F
W B A RES RN EE MK 25
Ptk - BRI EMAEME—TFED D RIR
ARRHAR T -RNFAANBR_F
—RNERNAZT RN AMARE

B R BR S 3 AR BT A thp e i o A B R
BERESXNRSOBEHEN  BRAR
BABEETLNEARARCRAERMAR

HA RE BN RSB ITOT -

Amounts repayable: FEEEFRIA :
Beyond five years AFRE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
133,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(®)

As at 31 December 2017, the actuarial liabilities existing in relation to
the retirement benefit obligations for employees who retired prior to the
acquisition of Huzhou Laohenghe Brewery Co., Limited by the
controlling shareholders and the early retirement obligations for
employees who early retired were RMB4,179,000 (2016:
RMB4,333,000). The benefit obligations arising from the plans were
unfunded.

The movements of the actuarial liabilities recognised in the statement of
financial position are as follows:

bt 765 e % Bt s (%)
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24 B RHEE @

(b)

R-EBE—+F+-A=+—0 GEERRE
RIUREE M EBRMEEEBR AR ARIKIES
FRAREANEERIERRAKEESNRIERNK
EENBEEERARK4179,000T(=F
—NEE : AR#4,333,0007T) ¢ TEIEAD
BNETARETES -

RETBERRREROIBEREZ T

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBFT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHRRMEE 4,505
Benefits paid BARER (172)
As at end of year REL 4,333

The discount rates and the principal actuarial assumptions for the
above obligations are as follows:

PR EEMNRE R EZBEEMRRAT

Discount rates: BRI :
Medical benefits EEEA
Survivor pension i &

Average annual benefit increase:

Medical benefits EEEA
Survivor pension i &

FEFHEMIELRE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
4% 3%

3.8%-4.3% 2.9%-3.5%

0%-4%
15%

0%-4%
15%

EEMBERR AT

T LEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR 7
Shares iR 45
2017
—E-tF
RMB’000
ARMTF T
Authorised: SETE

1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

1,000,000,000 % & J% 1 {& 0.0005 %= 7T

US$0.0005 (RMB0.00305) each (AR¥0.003057T) 89 & @RS
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
578,750,000 (2016: 578,750,000) 578,750,000 %
ordinary shares of US$0.0005 (ZZ=—7]4F : 578,750,000 %)
(US$0.0005) each MR TE{E0.0005 % T
(0.0005 %7t ) #) & @Ak

A summary of movement in the Company’s issued share capital and

2016
ZE—RF

RMB’000
AREETIT

3,050

1,767

ARECEITIRAR K B0 ) 8 Bk 2 Byttt 4n

share premium account are as follows: T
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
28T 28T v
BREOEE [N EiR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTT AREKTT
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—HA—H 518,750,000 1,584 717,614 719,198
Issue of shares (Note) BITRR M (BT E) 60,000,000 183 304,507 304,690
Share issue expense (Note) f& 78 77R S (PM9RE) - - (113) (113)
Final 2015 dividend declared EERZE—RAFRARE - - (45,650) (45,650)
At 31 December 2016 and R-TE—XE+-_A=+—H
1 January 2017 rM=ZT—+F—HF—H 578,750,000 1,767 976,358 978,125
Final 2016 dividend declared BER-ZT—NFAREKE - - (41,670) (41,670)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 578,750,000 1,767 934,688 936,455
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (Continued)

Note: On 23 June 2016, 60,000,000 new shares were issued and allotted by
the Company to an independent third party at the subscription price of
HK$6.00 (RMB5.08) per share. The proceeds of RMB183,000
representing the par value were credited to the Company’s issued
capital. The remaining proceeds of RMB304,507,000, after netting-off
the share issue expense of RMB113,000, were credited to the share
premium account.

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88 of the financial
statements.

(@) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
Company’s shares of the nominal value of the paid-up capital
of the subsidiaries acquired and the Company’s cost of
acquisition of the subsidiaries under the principles of the
pooling-of-interests method.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve arises from the capital contribution by the
controlling shareholders of the Company.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus reserve
are made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC, and are approved by the
respective boards of directors.

bt 765 e % Bt s (%)

31 December 2017 —E—+&+-HA=+—H

25. B 7N ()

B0 (@)

Mz RZZE—RFARAAZ+T=H AR IREK
6.0078 7T (AR®5.0870) REBER — 278
37 58 = 75 %17 N Bd % 60,000,000 FE FT AL (7 °
R8s B AR 183,000t (HBEREE) B
SARRRIEBITHRA - B TAEREAR
# 304,507,000 7C (HEER D TR T AR
113,0007c1%) B 5t AR B R o

26. # &

REBRANFERBEFENHRESELE
PG MR E ST E 88 HMLR AR E T
G EXE

(@) BEOHHE

BHREEHEREED S HERAARA]
FEAL P4 BB I 8 2 R B0 U AR A T (B £
ENNSIE S A = NI DL B NG DR ==
B o

(b) EXf#EfE
AARGEBRE AR RERRREEE -

() EEZEERFHE

BRENBEREETERSRHETER
PEABER MROIA R AR T A E
EJZiE’JPﬁ% N AR AR B R A R T
WEHRHEESHE -

ZEMBEARLAR —T—tFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. RERERMERMWE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing AMETBECEENEBNT

activities are as follows:

Finance

Bank and lease
other loans payables
BITR mMEHE
HtER FEARIE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTR

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—AF—H 814,560 34,427
Changes from financing cash flows MmERERSY 38,200 (35,231)
New finance lease MEAREE = 102,853
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H 852,760 102,049
28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. EEEH
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's bank loans are REBEBIRITEFRAEIREENFIBHNH
included in note 21(b) to the financial statements. T EE21(0) ©
777 L E 'A_|
29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. X<&HE L HE
The Group leases certain of its properties and equipment under AEBERBEEHERHERE TYERR
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and equipment & MELRREOHEHEINT—ZE+F -

are negotiated for terms ranging between one and ten years.

At 31 December 2017 the Group had total future minimum lease RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H x5ERE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as PAHHEELTHENRRKELERAERE
follows: BEEIERET
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETE

Within one year —FR 1,502
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEEFRAFHN(BEEERT) 2,522
After five years HFE 1,110

5,134
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. &$E
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 29 B b SCBIRT 20 ATl a8 & TH E A IENN » K&
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end BRREEARA T5IE A EIE :

of the reporting period:

2017 2016
S P
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETE

Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAVERETIREME
Plant and machinery 5 M 2s 56,116

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. HEM L X Z

(a) Outstanding balances with related parties (a) EEEAEE S WREEZELEER
The Group had no outstanding balance due to its related RZE—tEFRZF—-—R"F+ZA
parties as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. =+—0  AEEMERSER SR

EREEER

(b) Compensation for key management personnel (including (b) *EEXBEBEAENHE (BRES
directors’ remuneration) of the Group: i)
2017 2016
—e—t®  —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARBETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZBREYRE 588
Performance related bonuses FIAAMEA 100
Pension scheme contributions RINSFT B 63
Total compensation paid to SHTFEZEEAENHSRE

key management personnel 751
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 BREEMSHE— S HBEHN I ER

to the financial statements. EHizrs o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. ZFHETHNEMITE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EREMTARMEMROKAEMAT -

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets THEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXRR BERk
FEWRRIE FEW R IE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Trade receivables FEUWNE 5518 129,547 162,471
Financial assets included in deposits and SFARE NEMERFTEN S BLE E

other receivables 31,740 20,070
Time deposits T HATE K - 69,396
Pledged deposits BHEBIFH 76,047 159,014
Cash and cash equivalents B NBEEEEY 443,893 291,815

681,227 702,766
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY NR.EZERETHNEMIEn
CATEGORY (Continued)
Financial liabilities THas
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZE—RF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost

LA 85 B 2R LA SH AR AR

SRRz SIfRZ
THMERE ETHAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Trade payables EE 5508 153,539 143,819
Financial liabilities included in other SAHEMENMZTTENEATEE SN

payables and accruals ERAE 19,641 17,512
Financial liabilities included in other SAEMEHEGENEHEE

long term liabilities 133,000 133,000
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings EBEITREMER 954,809 848,987

1,260,989 1,143,318

33. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 33. EZES@EE

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a trade EAEREERERKN 3D ALEERILE
receivable factoring arrangement (the “Arrangement”) and transferred WESRIBREZH(TZETH])  BETE
certain trade receivables to banks. Under the Arrangement, the WE SHRBEZETRIT REZZHE A%
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include ERBEEEERE SHHIERBANBARIS D
default risks relating to such trade receivables, and accordingly, it Rk K Bk (BIERAER) - HEE DR
continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of the trade REVRBIFEMNEESE - NEFEE - X
receivables. Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain any SEUYEREBETAEBAEARERKE ZRIEDN
rights on the use of trade receivables, including the sale, transfer or R BERAEMEME=FHE  HEK
pledge of the trade receivables to any other third parties. As at 31 GHERESRE R_ZE—XF+=-A8
December 2016, the original carrying value of the trade receivables =+—H REZTHEEMEREENE
transferred under the Arrangement that have not been settled W& 5 IR R AR EE & A KR 23,100,000
amounted to RMB23,100,000, of which carrying amounts that the T HRASEBERANEESEAAR
Group continued to recognise was RMB23,100,000, and that of the #23,100,0007T - MIHEEBENEREESER
associated liabilities was RMB17,800,000. As at 31 December 2017, AR®17,800,000T e R=ZE—tF+ =8
the Group did not enter into such trade receivable factoring —t+—H AEEUYETVEEARRKE SR
arrangement. TERIBZHE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

35

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments as disclosed in Note 32 to the financial
statements are approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these financial instruments.

There were no transfers of fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, pledged deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are

credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35 S EREE R ERIEw
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk SN 2\ B
The Group is exposed to the foreign currency risk mainly arising from AKEE a2 ES AR ’ﬁj i3 3?— ZE)im
changes in the exchange rate of USD against RMB. The Group has %f‘iﬁw‘\ﬁ‘?@fgﬁ ° %%ﬁ'J9ng%¥T$%@
not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk based on the consideration WAER - WAKEAL EEFINER R -

that the foreign currency transactions are not significant to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRETEMAEMBESRHTENBERT -
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the USD AEBERBAFE(REEEERBENRT
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s EEBMES) A RAREERE N HREHK
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets EXTLERAGEERNGERBOFRE -

and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
currency before tax
rate and equity
RRBEAT

ShgE=R B RS
LA (TR &/ (8L

% RMB’000
% ARBEFT
2017 —E—tF
If USD weakens against RMB WMETHARKEE (3,096)
If USD strengthens against RMB METHARBHE 3,096
2016 —E-RF
If USD weakens against RMB WMETHARKEE @) (11,421)
If USD strengthens against RMB WETHAREAE 5 11,421
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. iR REEEERBE®

152

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

A major concentration of credit risk arises from the Group’s exposure
to a substantial number of trade receivables, other receivables, time
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and derived from revenue
earned from customers in the PRC, which exposes the Group to
credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that the sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and
has strict control over credit limits of trade and other receivables. In
addition, the balance of trade receivables is monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables are disclosed in notes 16
and 17 above.

Cash and time deposits are mainly deposited with registered banks in
Mainland China. The Group has policies to limit its credit exposure to
any financial institutions and management believes these financial
institutions are of high credit quality.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables, time
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group
has no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to
credit risk.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents

and have available funding through capital contribution and bank
loans.

The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

follows:

At 31 December 2017

Less than

On demand 3 months

REXE =EAR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETE

Trade payables ENESHA 118,428
Financial liabilities included in -~ £+ A Bt B+ 5008 |2

other payables and accruals ~ JEEHIEE S EIEE 19,641
Financial liabilities included in -~ st A B EHIE &
in other long term liabilities 4 g4 (5

Interest-bearing bank and FEBITREMER

other borrowings 77,089

PACR

At 31 December 2016

35. MEEEBEEREERBEE@m®

MBI LR

AEBEBNBRRBRE TN MRS EFE
W WEETEMBTERDGEES °

RBEHR EREERETHERKEN
REEEIERAT -

R-ZE—tH&+=-HA=+—H

3to 1t05 Over
12 months years 5years Total
=@AZE
TR —%Z5f BENE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT AR%®TR

153,539

19,641

134,463 134,463

847,694 65,382 990,165

847,694 65,382 134,463 1,297,808

R-ZE—R"F+=-_A=+—H

Less than 3to 1105 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
@Az

REXE =EAR TZEA  —EERF AERE st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARETT ARBTR ARBTT AR®FR ARETR

Trade payables BB SR 48,489 95,330 - - - 143,819
Financial liabilities included in - 5T A E A JE 1 008 Iz

other payables and accruals ~ E:tEEHERAE - 17,512 - - - 17,512
Financial liabilities included in -~ st A B EHIB EH

in other long term liabilities  4-zb & & - - - - 134,463 134,463
Interest-bearing bank and HERTREMER

other borrowings - 132,651 668,470 76,109 - 877,230

48,489 245,493 668,470 76,109 134,463 1,173,024
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. iR REEEERBE®

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt includes trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and other long term liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

ARER

AREEAEENEIRBRRBRRAKES
BEBENNALEFREOERL R UX
FSEXBRARRFMSEAEE - AKEHE
WEEBERNEEMER RABRELBEARE -
RERFLIABREARE  AREXGHESX
NFPEROBRE - RERATRRKETH

B e

FEERAEAABHEERER R X
BREBRABREINFERTE - FEH
BIENE SRR - E RN 30 R ERHR
B fERRTEREMEFRAREGERAE
BESLREEEBY -  ARENBRERE
AEELRGERFNREIBKF - RIEHIRD
ERBELTET

Group INEEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®EFTT
Trade payables ERTE 558 153,539 143,819
Other payables and accruals E b FRIE X FEET IR B 85,628 78,510
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMBER 954,809 848,987
Other long term liabilities EMREBEE 137,179 137,333
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERREEEY (443,893) (291,815)
Net debt SFET 887,262 916,834
Total equity B 2,033,839 1,902,009
Net debt and total equity FE R AR 2,921,101 2,818,843
Gearing ratio EAREBELE 30% 33%
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 36. A BV BT B AR R =
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company RIPERAKR - B QBB AT ER
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: i N
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®ETTT
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JB /I - 24 & HAb e Y Fk1E 134 6,388
Due from a subsidiary FE UL —FEIFfT B 2 R 5RIE 899,875 1,000,421
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 342 692
Total current assets MEVEEMRE 900,351 1,007,501
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAME
Other payables and accruals Hh M RIE R EFTIER 628 54
Total current liabilities mENBELRRE 628 54
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS REBIEEFEREETE 899,723 1,007,447
EQUITY s
Share capital & A 1,767 1,767
Reserves (Note) (M) 897,956 1,005,680
Total equity e iaEE 899,723 1,007,447
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

37

36. AR RKY B BRI &K

Note: P ST -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AREIFEEHERET -
Share Exchange
premium fluctuation Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
ROEER EXRBEE E5y 3] st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETTT ARKETT AR¥ETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2016 R=ZE—R"F—H—H 717,614 44,498 (73,066) 689,046
Total comprehensive income for FNGAEWALERE
the year - 62,618 (4,728) 57,890
Issue of shares (note 25) BT (MiRE25) 304,507 - - 304,507
Share issue expenses (note 25) i 15 31T X (5 25) (113) - - (113)
2015 final dividend declared EER-Z-AFREAKRES (45,650) - - (45,650)
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H
1 January 2017 rZZT—tF—HA—H 976,358 107,116 (77,794) 1,005,680
Total comprehensive income for FNEGEWALERE
the year - (65,037) (1,017) (66,054)
2016 final dividend declared BEER-Z—NERBARE (41,670) - - (41,670)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+ZA=+—H 934,688 42,079 (78,811) 897,956

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

37. EM B KR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 29 March 2018.
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